
Agenda                        Board of Supervisors         September 7, 2021 
 

Russell County Page 1 
 

  
RUSSELL COUNTY 

 
BOARD OF SUPERVISOR’S MEETING 

 
AGENDA – September 7, 2021 

 
RC Conference Room             Regular Meeting               6:00 PM 

 
Russell County Governmental Center 

Lebanon, Virginia 24266 
 

 
 

 
 
CALL TO ORDER & ROLL CALL – Clerk of the Board 
 
INVOCATION – Chairperson  
  
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE TO THE FLAG OF THE UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
RECOGNITION  
 

1. Lebanon High School 2021 VHSL Group 2A Baseball Team – State Champions 
 

2. Lebanon High School 2021 VHSL Varsity Softball Team   
 

3. StreamSweepers – Clinch River Project  
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 

1. Alternative Public Educational Programs – School Choice 
 

NEW BUSINESS 
 

1. Approval of Minutes.  Consider approval of the minutes of the  
following meeting of the Russell County Board of Supervisors….……………A-1 
 

a. Unapproved minutes of August 2, 2021          
  



Agenda                        Board of Supervisors         September 7, 2021 
 

Russell County Page 2 
 

 
 

2. Approval of Expenditures. Consider approval of expenditures presented  
for payment……………………………………………………………………………...A-2 
 

3. Committee Appointments for Board Consideration (Tabled). 
 

County Advisory Committee  
 
(1) Appointment Per Board Member  
 
RC Planning Commission 
 
Charles Edmonds  Four-Year Term         April 3, 2021 
Roger Sword           Four-Year Term  December 31, 2020 
 
Cumberland Plateau Economic Development Commission 
 
Frank Horton      One-Year Term  June 30, 2021 
Tony Lambert  One-Year Term  June 30, 2021 
Ron Blankenship  One-Year Term  June 30, 2021 
James Eaton, Jr.   One-Year Term  June 30, 2021 
 
Dante Community Center 
 
Jason Gullett  Two-Year Term  June 30, 2021 
 
Russell County Library Board 
 

 Karen Herndon  Four-Year Term  June 30, 2021 
 Ann Monk   Four-Year Term  June 30, 2021 
 Judy Ashbrook  Four-Year Term  July 10, 2021 
 
 RC Highway & Safety Committee 
 
 Gary Dotson  Two-Year Term  July 1, 2021 
 Johnny Jessee  Two-Year Term  July 1, 2021 
 Steve Dye   Two-Year Term  July 1, 2021 
 Eugene Ferguson  Two-Year Term  July 1, 2021 
 Tony Maxfield  Two-Year Term  July 1, 2021 
 Mike O’Quinn  Two-Year Term  July 1, 2021 
 Barbara K. Cox  Two-Year Term  July 1, 2021 
 Henry E. Stinson, Jr. Two-Year Term  July 1, 2021 
 Carl Rhea   Two-Year Term   July 1, 2021 
 Emory Altizer  Two-Year Term  July 1, 2021 
 
 



Agenda                        Board of Supervisors         September 7, 2021 
 

Russell County Page 3 
 

 
 
 Community Policy Management Team 
 
 Angela Farmer  Three-Year Term  August 3, 2021 
 
 Dante Community Center 
 
 Catherine Pratt  Two-Year Term  August 5, 2021 
 
 Southwest Community College Advisory Board 
 
 Lynn Keene   Four-Year Term  August 7, 2021 
 Gregory Brown  Four-Year Term  August 7, 2021 
 
 RC Industrial Development Authority (IDA) 
 
 Roger Sword  Four-Year Term  September 7, 2021 
 Scott Gilmer   Four-Year Term  September 7, 2021 
  
CITIZEN’S COMMENT PERIOD (Limited to 3 minutes) 
 
CONSTITUTIONAL OFFICER REPORTS AND REQUESTS 
 
COUNTY ATTORNEY REPORTS AND REQUESTS………………………………………..B-1 

 
1. Project Jonah Interjurisdictional Agreement 

 
COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR REPORTS AND REQUESTS 
 
      REPORTS 
 

1. RC Sanitary Landfill – Leachate Storage Tank Operations………………………C-1 
 

2. VDOT September 2021 BOS Update Report…………….…………………………..C-2 
 

3. COV Auditor of Public Accounts – Clerk of Circuit Court…………..……………C-3 
 

REQUESTS 
 
4. VDOT Rte. 637 Discontinued Bridge & Prescriptive Easement…………………C-4                                                    

Right-of-Way – 30 ft. width & 0.02-mile length 
 

5. RC IDA AFID Grant – Project Brown….……………………………………………...C-5 
 

6. Supreme Court of VA Drug Treatment Court Docket Grant - $90,000………….C-6 
 



Agenda                        Board of Supervisors         September 7, 2021 
 

Russell County Page 4 
 

 
7. Three Rivers Destination Center – Professional Consulting Services RFQ…..C-7 

 
8. VA Department of Criminal Justice Services Grant - $70,000……………………C-8 

 
9. RC Disposal Truck Surplus…………………………………………………………….C-9 

 
MATTERS PRESENTED BY THE BOARD 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
COUNTY AGENCY / BOARD REPORTS: 
  

• Treasurer’s Report ………………………………………………………………………D 
• RC IDA …………………………………………………………………………………….E 
• RC PSA …………………………………………………………………………………... F 
• Castlewood W&S ………………………………………………………………………..G 
• RC Tourism……………………………………………………………………………….H 
• RC Planning Commission ……………………………………………………………..I 
• RC Conference Center….………………………………………………………………J 
• RC Fitness Center……………………………………………………………………….K 
• RC Transportation & Safety…………………………………………………………...L 
• RC Cannery Reports…………………………………………………………………….M 
• RC Building Inspector…………………………………………………………………..N 
• RC Disposal………………………………………………………………………………O 
• RC Litter…………………………………………………………………………………...P   

 



                                                                                                                                                                                                         
Russell County Government Center 

137 Highland Drive · Lebanon, Virginia 24266 · (276) 889-8000 · Fax (276) 889-8011 
www.russellcountyva.us 

 
Board of Supervisors   Information Item  

137 Highland Drive                                  Presenters - Various 
Lebanon, VA 24266                    

        Meeting: 9/7/21      6:00 PM 
 

 
Recognition  

 
 

1. Lebanon High School 2021 VHSL Group 2A Baseball Team – State Champions 
 

2. Lebanon High School 2021 VHSL Varsity Softball Team   
 

3. StreamSweepers – Clinch River Project  
 
 

 
Staff Recommendation: 

 
Presentation – Informational Only. 

 
Suggested Motion: 

 
Board Discretion.  

 
ATTACHMENTS: 
• Various  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



















 

Tracy
Highlight

Tracy
Highlight







                                                                                                                                                                                                         
Russell County Government Center 

137 Highland Drive · Lebanon, Virginia 24266 · (276) 889-8000 · Fax (276) 889-8011 
www.russellcountyva.us 

 
   Board of Supervisors                      Action Item 

137 Highland Drive                             Presenters - Chairperson 
Lebanon, VA 24266                    

         Meeting: 9/7/21     6:00 PM 
 

 
Public Hearing  
 

1. Alternative Public Educational Programs – School Choice 
 
 

Staff Recommendation: 
 

Board Discretion. 
 

Suggested Motion: 
 

Board Discretion.  
 

ATTACHMENTS: 
• Various   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 Russell County Virginia  

“The Heart of Southwest Virginia” 

Oris Christian 
At-Large 

 David Eaton 
District 4 

Lou Ann Wallace Rebecca Dye, Chairperson Steve Breeding 
District 2 District 6 District 5 

Carl Rhea Tim Lovelace, Vice-Chairman Lonzo Lester 
District 3 District 1 County Administrator 

 
 
 

PUBLIC NOTICE 
 
 

The Russell County Board of Supervisors will conduct a Public Hearing on Tuesday, 
September 7, 2021, at 6:00 p.m. to hear comments concerning “Public Interest 
Concerning Alternative Public School Educational Programs”.  

The Public Hearing will be held in the Russell County Conference Room                     at the Russell 
County Governmental Center, 133 Highland Drive, Lebanon, Virginia during the regular 
monthly meeting on September 7, 2021.  

 
 

BY ORDER OF THE 
RUSSELL COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Russell County Government Center 
137 Highland Drive · Lebanon, Virginia 24266 · (276) 889-8000 · Fax (276) 889-8011 

www.russellcountyva.us 

http://www.russellcountyva.us/


 
     Board of Supervisors                       Action Item A-1 

137 Highland Drive  Presenter: Chairperson 
Lebanon, VA 24266 

         Meeting: 9/7/21       6:00 PM 
 

                                                                                                                                                                                                         
Russell County Government Center 

137 Highland Drive · Lebanon, Virginia 24266 · (276) 889-8000 · Fax (276) 889-8011 
www.russellcountyva.us 

 
 
 
 
 

 
Approval of Minutes  

Request approval of the minutes from the following meeting: 

• Unapproved minutes of August 2, 2021 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION(s): 
Board discretion 

 
SUGGESTED MOTION(s): 
Motion to approve Board Minutes. 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 
 

• Board Minutes 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

August 02, 2021 

The regular monthly meeting of the Russell County Board of Supervisors was held on Monday, August 
02, 2021 beginning with Executive (closed) Session at 5:00 pm followed by the regular meeting at 6:00 
pm at the Russell County Government Center in Lebanon, Virginia. 

The Clerk called the meeting to order. 

EXECUTIVE (CLOSED) SESSION 

Motion made by Steve Breeding, second David Eaton and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
enter into Executive (closed) Session to discuss legal matters pursuant to Section 2.2-3711(a)(1)(7)(8) – 
Legal Discussions concerning Personnel and Contractual Matters. 

The vote was: 
Aye:  Steve Breeding, David Eaton, Tim Lovelace, Lou Wallace, Carl Rhea, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 

APPROVAL TO RETURN TO REGULAR SESSION 
 

Motion made by Steve Breeding, second David Eaton and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
return to regular session. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Steve Breeding, David Eaton, Tim Lovelace, Lou Wallace, Carl Rhea, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 
 

CERTIFICATION OF CLOSED SESSION 
 
Pursuant to § 2.2-3712(D) of the Code of Virginia 1950, as amended each member of the Board of 
Supervisors upon the Roll Call certifies that to the best of their knowledge (I) only public business 
matters lawfully exempted from the open meeting requirements under the Virginia Freedom of 
 
Information Act and (ii) only such public business matters that were identified in the motion(s) by which 
the closed meeting was convened were heard, discussed, or considered in the meeting by the Board of 
Supervisors. 

Any member of the Board of Supervisors who believes that there was a departure from the 
requirements of clauses (I) and (ii) above shall so state prior to the vote, indicating the substance of the 
departure that, in his or her judgment, has taken place. 
 
Are there any who believe a departure has taken place?  Seeing none, if you agree that the matters heard, 
discussed, or considered during the closed meeting were pursuant only to the motion(s) by which the 
closed meeting was convened, please signify by saying aye or yes. 

Tim Lovelace – AYE 
Lou Wallace – AYE 
Carl Rhea – AYE 
David Eaton – AYE 



Rebecca Dye - AYE 
Steve Breeding – AYE 
Oris Christian – AYE 
 
 
Invocation by Chair Rebecca Dye, followed by the Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag. 
 

APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 
 

Motion made by Steve Breeding, second Carl Rhea and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve the agenda as presented. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Steve Breeding, Carl Rhea, Tim Lovelace, David Eaton, Lou Wallace, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 
 
 

PUBLIC HEARING HELD ON THE CLEVELAND SCHOOL PROPERTY 
 
Pursuant to being advertised in a local newspaper for (2) two consecutive weeks, a public hearing was 
held on the transfer of the Cleveland School Property to the Russell County Industrial Development 
Authority.  The Chair opened the public hearing to comments, hearing none the public hearing was 
closed. 
 

PUBLIC HEARING HELD ON THE GIVENS SCHOOL LEASE 
 
Pursuant to being advertised in a local newspaper for (2) two consecutive weeks, a public hearing was 
held on the Givens School Lease.   The Chair opened the public hearing to comments.  
 
Brian Simms spoke in favor of the lease. 
 
Hearing no other comments, the public hearing was closed. 
 

PUBLIC HEARING HELD ON VDOT RTE. 637 DISCONTINUED BRIDGE 
 
Pursuant to being advertised in a local newspaper for (2) two consecutive weeks, a public hearing was 
held on the VDOT Rte. 637 discontinued bridge prescriptive easement right-of-way – 30-foot width and 
0.02 – mile length.   The Chair opened the public hearing to comments, hearing none the public hearing 
was closed. 
 
 
Board Appointments 
 
Advisory Committee 
 
Advisory committee appointments were as follows: 
 
Tim Lovelace – no appointment 



Carl Rhea – Jennifer Chumbley 
David Eaton – Lynn Hess 
Steve Breeding – Nate Kiser 
Oris Christian – no appointment 
Rebecca Dye – no appointment 
 
 

BOARD APPOINTMENTS TABLED 
 

Motion made by Steve Breeding, second David Eaton and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
table all BOS appointments listed on the agenda. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Steve Breeding, David Eaton, Tim Lovelace, Lou Wallace, Carl Rhea, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 
 
New Business 
 

APPROVAL OF THE JULY 12, 2021 MINUTES 
 
Motion made by Lou Wallace, second David Eaton and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve the July 12, 2021 minutes and dispense with the reading thereof. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Lou Wallace, David Eaton, Tim Lovelace, Steve Breeding, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 
Abstain: Carl Rhea 
 

APPROVAL OF GENERAL COUNTY INVOICES 
 
Motion made by Steve Breeding, second Lou Wallace and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve general county invoices in the amount of $1,944,703.06 including recurring and withholdings.  
The vote was: 
 
Aye:  Lou Wallace, David Eaton, Tim Lovelace, Steve Breeding, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 
Abstain: Carl Rhea 
 
 
Citizens Comment 
 
The Chair opened citizens comment period. 
 
Doro Martin, Lebanon invited the Board to attend the 1st Annual Vet Fest to be held at the Russell 
County Fairgrounds on September 25th and 26th. 
 
Shawn Vance, Castlewood stated that Star Ministries needs funds, and the board should consider this.  
He also stated that the tabling committee appointments was ridiculous and unnecessary. 



 
Michelle Vance, Castlewood commented that county boards should alter meeting schedules to better 
accommodate citizens that work.   
 
Nate Kiser, Lebanon commented that it had been 46 days since the Advisory Committee was approved.  
He thinks that it is inexcusable and ridiculous that no appointments have been made from four of the 
Board members. 
 
The chairperson closed citizens comment period. 
 
County Attorney Reports and Requests 
 

APPROVAL OF THE RUSSELL COUNTY COURTHOUSE COMPREHENSIVE AGREEMENT 
 
Motion made by Steve Breeding, second Lou Wallace and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve the Russell County Courthouse Comprehensive Agreement subject to county attorney final 
revisions and minor changes. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Steve Breeding, Lou Wallace, Carl Rhea, Tim Lovelace, David Eaton, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 
 

APPROVAL TO NEGOTIATE WITH THE PROJECT JONAH CONSTRUCTION & ENVIRONMENTAL 
INSPECTION SERVICE RFQ TOP RANKED FIRM 

 
Motion made by Steve Breeding, second Tim Lovelace and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve the Project Jonah Construction and Environmental Inspection Service RFQ committee proposal 
pursuant to procurement to negotiate with the top ranked firm. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Steve Breeding, Tim Lovelace, Carl Rhea, David Eaton, Lou Wallace, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 
 

APPROVAL TO TRANSFER THE CLEVELAND SCHOOL PROPERTY TO THE RUSSELL COUNTY IDA 
 
Motion made by Steve Breeding, second Carl Rhea and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
transfer the Cleveland School Property to the Russell County Industrial Authority. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Steve Breeding, Carl Rhea, Tim Lovelace, David Eaton, Lou Wallace, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 
 

APPROVAL OF THE GIVENS SCHOOL LEASE 
 
Motion made by David Eaton, second Steve Breeding and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve the Givens School lease upon final legal review and/or changes by the County Attorney. 
 
The vote was: 



Aye:  Steve Breeding, David Eaton, Tim Lovelace, Lou Wallace, Carl Rhea, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 
 

APPROVAL OF A WAIVER TO ADMINISTER AN EXISTING SPLIT PRECINCT 
 
Motion made by Lou Wallace, second David Eaton and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve a waiver to administer an existing split precinct as requested by the General Registrar. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Lou Wallace, David Eaton, Steve Breeding, Tim Lovelace, Carl Rhea, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 
 
County Administrator Reports and Requests 
 
The Chair appointed Lou Wallace and Tim Lovelace to serve on the Voter Redistricting Steering 
Committee. 
 

APPROVAL TO ACCEPT THE BROWNFIELDS ASSISTANCE FUND GRANT 
 

Motion made by Lou Wallace, second Carl Rhea and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
accept the Brownfields Assistance Fund Grant in the amount of $50,000. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Lou Wallace, Carl Rhea, Tim Lovelace, David Eaton, Steve Breeding, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 
 

APPROVAL TO ACCEPT THE VIRGINIA DEPT. OF FIRE PROGRAMS GRANT 
 
Motion made by David Eaton, second Lou Wallace and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
accept the Virginia Department of Fire Programs Grant in the amount of $90,786. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Lou Wallace, David Eaton, Steve Breeding, Tim Lovelace, Carl Rhea, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 
 

APPROVAL TO PROCLAIM AUGUST 22 AS SPINAL MUSCULAR ATROPHY AWARENESS DAY 
 

Motion made by David Eaton, second Steve Breeding and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
proclaim August 22, 2021 as Spinal Muscular Atrophy Awareness Day. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Steve Breeding, David Eaton, Tim Lovelace, Lou Wallace, Carl Rhea, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 
 

 
 
 
 



PUBLIC HEARING TO BE HELD TO SOLICIT INPUT ON SCHOOL CHOICE 
 

Motion made by Steve Breeding, second David Eaton and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
hold a public hearing to solicit input on school choice on September 07, 2021 at 6:00 pm. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Steve Breeding, David Eaton, Tim Lovelace, Lou Wallace, Carl Rhea, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 
 

APPROVAL TO ADJOURN 
 

Motion made by David Eaton, second Carl Rhea and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
adjourn and to hold the next monthly meeting on Tuesday, September 07, 2021 due to Labor Day. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Steve Breeding, David Eaton, Tim Lovelace, Lou Wallace, Carl Rhea, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
_________________________                                                                ___________________________ 
 Clerk of the Board                                                                                      Chairperson 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 



 
                                                      Board of Supervisors                         Action Item A-2 

137 Highland Drive Presenter: Chairperson 
Lebanon, VA 24266 

        Meeting: 9/7/21      6:00 PM 
 

                                                                                                                                                                                                         
Russell County Government Center 

137 Highland Drive · Lebanon, Virginia 24266 · (276) 889-8000 · Fax (276) 889-8011 
www.russellcountyva.us 

 
 
 
 
 

 
Approval of Expenditures 

Request approval of the County’s August 2021 Monthly Expenditures: 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION(s):  
County’s August 2021 Monthly Expenditures are in compliance with budget and operational 

services. 

 
SUGGESTED MOTION(s): 
Motion to approve County’s August 2021 Monthly Expenditures. 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 
 

• August 2021 Monthly Expenditures 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 





















 
Board of Supervisors  Action Item 
137 Highland Drive Presenter: Chairperson  
Lebanon, VA 24266 

        Meeting: 9/7/21        6:00 PM 
 

                                                                                                                                                                                                         
Russell County Government Center 

137 Highland Drive · Lebanon, Virginia 24266 · (276) 889-8000 · Fax (276) 889-8011 
www.russellcountyva.us 

 
 
 
 
 

      Board Appointments 

 
1. Committee Appointments for Board Consideration (Tabled). 

 
County Advisory Committee  
 
(1) Appointment Per Board Member  
 
RC Planning Commission 
 
Charles Edmonds  Four-Year Term         April 3, 2021 
Roger Sword           Four-Year Term  December 31, 2020 
 
Cumberland Plateau Economic Development Commission 
 
Frank Horton      One-Year Term  June 30, 2021 
Tony Lambert  One-Year Term  June 30, 2021 
Ron Blankenship  One-Year Term  June 30, 2021 
James Eaton, Jr.   One-Year Term  June 30, 2021 
 
Dante Community Center 
 
Jason Gullett  Two-Year Term  June 30, 2021 
 
Russell County Library Board 
 

 Karen Herndon  Four-Year Term  June 30, 2021 
 Ann Monk   Four-Year Term  June 30, 2021 
 Judy Ashbrook  Four-Year Term  July 10, 2021 
 
 RC Highway & Safety Committee 
 
 Gary Dotson  Two-Year Term  July 1, 2021 
 Johnny Jessee  Two-Year Term  July 1, 2021 
 Steve Dye   Two-Year Term  July 1, 2021 
 Eugene Ferguson  Two-Year Term  July 1, 2021 
 Tony Maxfield  Two-Year Term  July 1, 2021 



 
Board of Supervisors  Action Item 
137 Highland Drive Presenter: Chairperson  
Lebanon, VA 24266 

        Meeting: 9/7/21        6:00 PM 
 

                                                                                                                                                                                                         
Russell County Government Center 

137 Highland Drive · Lebanon, Virginia 24266 · (276) 889-8000 · Fax (276) 889-8011 
www.russellcountyva.us 

 
 
 Mike O’Quinn  Two-Year Term  July 1, 2021 
 Barbara K. Cox  Two-Year Term  July 1, 2021 
 Henry E. Stinson, Jr. Two-Year Term  July 1, 2021 
 Carl Rhea   Two-Year Term   July 1, 2021 
 Emory Altizer  Two-Year Term  July 1, 2021 
 
 Community Policy Management Team 
 
 Angela Farmer  Three-Year Term  August 3, 2021 
 
 Dante Community Center 
 
 Catherine Pratt  Two-Year Term  August 5, 2021 
 
 Southwest Community College Advisory Board 
 
 Lynn Keene   Four-Year Term  August 7, 2021 
 Gregory Brown  Four-Year Term  August 7, 2021 
 
 RC Industrial Development Authority (IDA) 
 
 Roger Sword  Four-Year Term  September 7, 2021 

Scott Gilmer   Four-Year Term  September 7, 2021 
 













Items for August Agenda: 
Appointment of members to Advisory Committee "to discuss County and 
School issues relating to state mandates, budgeting, funding, etc.". As 
unanimously approved in the June 17, 2021 BOS meeting. 

 
Proposed Amendment to Committee Selection process for one 
selection per BOS member per committee. 
I would like to make a motion to modify the selection process that was 
approved last month to allow a member of the Russell County Board of 
Supervisors to appoint a member from the entire citizenship of Russell 
County if, in the sole opinion of the appointing supervisor, a qualified 
candidate for that appointment cannot be found within that supervisor's voting 
district.  

Methodology for future appointments by BOS until the One per One is 
achieved. 
The following is a potential method appointments as they come up.  

If a supervisor has more than one representative from his district with different 
"term expiration" date and an appointment for one of those representatives 
comes up, the supervisor may do the following: 

1. Reappoint that representative as the one for his/her district. In which 
case the remaining representatives from his/her district will come off the 
group when their terms expire and that appointment will go to the next 
supervisor who does not currently have a representative from his district on 
that group. 

2. Pass that appointment to the next supervisor who does not currently 
have a representative from his/her district on that group. In which case the 
representative whose term has expired will come off that group. 

The only remaining issue that needs to be discussed would be the order of 
appointment by any supervisors who do not currently have representatives 
from their district on a group. Perhaps a simple drawing for numbers 1 (first), 
2 (second), 3 (third), etc.? 



Groups impacted by this process are: 
 
Highway and Safety Committee 
 Dist 1, 3 members   (Dotson, O'Quinn, Cross, Lovelace) 
 Dist 2, 0 members   
 Dist 3, 4 members   (Jessee, Maxfield, Cox, Rhea) 
 Dist 4, 2 members   (Dye, Stinson) 
 Dist 5, 0 members 
 Dist 6, 2 members   (Ferguson, Altizer) 
 At Lg,  0 members 
Russell County Planning Commission 
 Dist 1, 1 member 
 Dist 2, 0 members 
 Dist 3, 3 members 
 Dist 4, 0 members 
 Dist 5, 0 members    (Roger Sword resigned) 
 Dist 6, 2 members 
 At Lg,  0 members 
                (Wayne Young and Mark Mitchell, Districts unknown) 
Russell County Library Board 
 Dist 1, 2 members   (Herndon, Lyttle) 
 Dist 2, 1 members   (Sargent) 
 Dist 3, 0 members   
 Dist 4, 2 members   (Dye, VanDyke) 
 Dist 5, 4 members   (Ashbrook, Davis, Monk, Breeding) 
 Dist 6, 0 members 
 At Lg,  0 members 
Russell County Industrial Development Authority 
 Dist 1, 0 members 
 Dist 2, 1 members   (Glass) 
 Dist 3, 0 members 
 Dist 4, 0 members 
 Dist 5, 4 members   (Sword, Elliott, McFaddin, Lockhart) 
 Dist 6, 1 members   (Christian) 
 At Lg,  1 members   (Stamper) 
 Town  2, members  (Dodi & Gilmer) 



From: kmcbride@russell.lib.va.us
To: Lonzo Lester
Cc: Vicki Porter
Subject: FW: Resignation from the Library of Trustees
Date: Tuesday, August 3, 2021 9:16:31 AM

Lonzo,
Sad news, but I had expected it. Were there any appointments last night?
Kelly
 
-----Original Message-----
From: "Karen Herndon" <cngrad@outlook.com>
Sent: Monday, August 2, 2021 7:54pm
To: "Kelly McBride" <kmcbride@russell.lib.va.us>
Subject: Resignation from the Library of Trustees

Kelly and Library Board, 

 

I am resigning from the Library Board of Trustees as of August 2, 2021.  I have been promoted
in my job and I just do not have the time and energy necessary to continue serving on the
board. 

It has been a pleasure to be a part of the Library Board and serve the citizens of Russell
County.  As you know, I was employed by the Russell County Public Library from 1995-2008
and later returned to serve on the Board.  I have been involved in Library Board meetings for
many years and I must say the current Board is the most conscientious of all I have known. 
This current Board not only consistently has a quorum present, but regularly has all members
present which has not always been the case so this is to be commended. Keep up the good
work. 

I will continue to advocate for the library and its mission to serve the needs of Russell County. 

Sincerely, 
Karen
 
Karen Herndon , CUA
Director, Consulting Expert/ Section 508 Accessibility Team Lead
CGI Federal
 

 

mailto:kmcbride@russell.lib.va.us
mailto:lonzo.lester@russellcountyva.us
mailto:vicki.porter@russellcountyva.us


From: Roger Sword
To: rebtdy@gmail.com; Steve Breeding; david.eaton; Louann Wallace; Tim Lovelace; Carl Rhea; Lonzo Lester; Ernest

McFaddin
Subject: IDA Reappointment
Date: Thursday, July 22, 2021 12:24:16 PM

I believe that my term of office as a member of the IDA is scheduled to
end in September of this year. I have enjoyed my 14 years of service on
that board and feel that I have contributed to the success we have seen.
I would like to continue in that capacity, if it be the wishes of the
Board of Supervisors.

The IDA presently consists of seven members appointed by you with an
additional two members recommended by the Lebanon Town Council for a
total membership of nine. Currently two of the sitting IDA members are
fairly new in their tenure and I understand we will be likely getting
another new replacement member from the Town Council in September. 
Experience and continuity are critical factors in the successful
operation of the IDA and its mission.

The IDA is currently involved in several important projects and I would
very much like to continue to be involved in their completion. I would
appreciate your support for my reappointment. Thank you for your
consideration.

Respectfully yours:

Roger Sword

--
This email has been checked for viruses by Avast antivirus software.
https://www.avast.com/antivirus

mailto:rogerdsword@gmail.com
mailto:rebtdy@gmail.com
mailto:sbreeding@bvu.net
mailto:david.eaton@russellcountyva.us
mailto:lou.wallace@russellcountyva.us
mailto:tim.lovelace@russellcountyva.us
mailto:carl.rhea@russellcountyva.us
mailto:lonzo.lester@russellcountyva.us
mailto:lemcfaddin@gmail.com
mailto:lemcfaddin@gmail.com
https://www.avast.com/antivirus
























Russell County Government Center 
137 Highland Drive · Lebanon, Virginia 24266 · (276) 889-8000 · Fax (276) 889-8011 

www.russellcountyva.us 

    Board of Supervisors   Action Item 
137 Highland Drive     Presenters - Attorney 
Lebanon, VA 24266 

  Meeting: 9/7/21   6:00 PM 

County Attorney Reports 

1. Project Jonah Interjurisdictional Agreement

Staff Recommendation: 

Board Discretion. 

Suggested Motion: 

Discussion Only.  

ATTACHMENTS: 
• Various



 

Board of Supervisors  Action Item C-1 – C-8 
137 Highland Drive Presenter: Administrator 
Lebanon, VA 24266 

                          Meeting: 9/7/21             6:00 PM 
 

 

 
 

County Administrator Reports & Requests 
The County Administrator Reports & Request for September 2021: 

 
      REPORTS 
 

1. RC Sanitary Landfill – Leachate Storage Tank Operations………………………C-1 
 

2. VDOT September 2021 BOS Update Report…………….…………………………..C-2 
 

3. COV Auditor of Public Accounts – Clerk of Circuit Court…………..……………C-3 
 

REQUESTS 
 
4. VDOT Rte. 637 Discontinued Bridge & Prescriptive Easement…………………C-4                                                    

Right-of-Way – 30 ft. width & 0.02-mile length 
 

5. RC IDA AFID Grant – Project Brown….……………………………………………...C-5 
 

6. Supreme Court of VA Drug Treatment Court Docket Grant - $90,000………….C-6 
 

7. Three Rivers Destination Center – Professional Consulting Services RFQ…..C-7 
 

8. VA Department of Criminal Justice Services Grant - $70,000……………………C-8 
 

9. RC Disposal Truck Surplus…………………………………………………………….C-9 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION(s): 
Board Discretion.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

Russell County Government Center 
137 Highland Drive · Lebanon, Virginia 24266 · (276) 889-8000 · Fax (276) 889-8011 

www.russellcountyva.us 

http://www.russellcountyva.us/
http://www.russellcountyva.us/


@A

@A&<
&<

!(

!(

!(

!(

"J

!(

"J

%L

@A

!(

&<

%L

"J !(

!(

!(

&<

@A

"J

"J

!

!

!

!

MW-4

MW-6
NES-1SNES-1D

BP-7

BP-5
BP-6

BP-9

CP-2
(Tripples)

BP-8

CP-1 (Bulk)

GWMP-4

MW-1
BP-4

MW-3
CP-4 (Pond)

BP-2

BP-3

BP-1
MW-2

MW-7

CP-3
(Side
Road)CP-5

(Transfer
Station)

Virginia Geographic Information Network (VGIN)

¯
Pa

th:
 P:

\B1
3\1

00
\B1

31
59

B\B
13

15
9B

-01
\G

IS\
17

 11
14

 - S
ite

 Ae
ria

l 2
4x

36
.m

xd

" "

2206 South Main Street
Blacksburg, VA 24060

540-552-0444  Fax: 540-552-0291

Draper Aden Associates
Engineering     Surveying    Environmental Services

Richmond, VA
Charlottesville, VA
Hampton Roads, VA

Raleigh, NC
Fayetteville, NC
Northern Virginia

B13159B-01

1 of 3

Aeriel Photo
Russell County Landfill, Permit Nos. 258 & 515
Russell County, Virginia

LPK

DMWMD

FIGURE:

DESIGNED BY:

DRAWN BY:

CHECKED BY:

SCALE:

DATE:

PROJECT NUMBER:

REVISIONS

Russell County Landfill

1" = 200'
11/14/2017

0 400 800200 Feet

Aerial Imagery: Spring 2015 Copyright Commonwealth of Virginia, VGIN Online

Perennial Stream

!

Generalized Groundwater Flow Direction
@A Monitoring Well
&< Observation Well
"J Leachate Monitoring Point
!( Gas Probe
%L Groundwater Monitoring Point (water supply well)
%L Surface Water Monitoring Point

Permit No. 258 Waste Boundary
Permit No. 515 Waste Boundary
Russell Co. Landfill Property Boundary

Permit No. 258

Permit No. 515

Russell County Landfill

Transfer Station

Scale House



DESIGNED BY:

DRAWN BY:

CHECKED BY:

SCALE:

DATE:

PROJECT NUMBER:

REVISIONS

OF

P
:\B

13
\1

00
\B

13
15

9B
\B

13
15

9B
-0

1\
C

A
D

\L
ea

ch
at

e 
D

ra
w

in
gs

\B
13

15
9B

-0
1 

P
ro

je
ct

 D
ra

w
in

gs
.d

w
g 

 A
ug

us
t 1

2,
 2

02
1 

10
:2

4:
40

 A
M

B13159B-01

August 12, 2021

3

R
U

S
S

E
LL

 C
O

U
N

T
Y

R
U

S
S

E
LL

 C
O

U
N

T
Y

, V
A

S
A

N
IT

A
R

Y
 L

A
N

D
F

IL
L

S
O

LI
D

 W
A

S
T

E
 P

E
R

M
IT

 N
O

. 5
15

En
gi

ne
er

in
g 

   
  S

ur
ve

yi
ng

   
   

En
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

l S
er

vi
ce

s

Vi
rg

in
ia

 B
ea

ch
, V

A

R
al

ei
gh

, N
C

Fa
ye

tte
vi

lle
, N

C

H
am

pt
on

 R
oa

ds
, V

A
C

ha
rlo

tte
sv

ill
e,

 V
A

R
ic

hm
on

d,
 V

A
22

06
 S

ou
th

 M
ai

n 
St

re
et

B
la

ck
sb

ur
g,

 V
A

 2
40

60
54

0-
55

2-
04

44
  F

ax
: 5

40
-5

52
-0

29
1

w
w

w
.d

aa
.c

om
N

or
th

er
n 

Vi
rg

in
ia

NONE

SG

EWG

EWG

0

SOLID WASTE PERMIT NO. 515
RUSSELL COUNTY SANITARY LANDFILL

*  *  *
RUSSELL COUNTY, VIRGINIA

08/12/2021

08/12/2021

DRAPER ADEN ASSOCIATES REVIEW

08/12/2021

THESE PLANS HAVE BEEN SUBJECTED TO TECHNICAL AND QUALITY REVIEWS BY:

ETHAN GARTIN, E.I.T.

PROJECT DESIGNER

WILLIAM MASON-DEESE

PROJECT MANAGER

STEVEN R. GANDY, PH.D, P.E.

QUALITY REVIEWER

NOTE: CONTRACTOR TO CONTACT
MISS UTILITY (811) IN ADVANCE OF
PLANNED WORK. ADVANCE TIME
PERIOD SHALL BE IN ACCORDANCE
WITH CURRENT MISS UTILITY
GUIDELINES
(www.missutilityofvirginia.com).

CALL "MISS UTILITY"
K

E
EP

 V IRG I N IA  SAFE !

BEFORE
 YO

U
 D

IG
!

C A R E

A
LW

AYS

DRAWING LIST

SHEET 0 - COVER
SHEET 1 - SITE PLAN
SHEET 2 - PIPING SCHEMATIC
SHEET 3 - DETAILS

OWNER INFORMATION
PROJECT LOCATION

DRAFT



DESIGNED BY:

DRAWN BY:

CHECKED BY:

SCALE:

DATE:

PROJECT NUMBER:

REVISIONS

OF

P
:\B

13
\1

00
\B

13
15

9B
\B

13
15

9B
-0

1\
C

A
D

\L
ea

ch
at

e 
D

ra
w

in
gs

\B
13

15
9B

-0
1 

P
ro

je
ct

 D
ra

w
in

gs
.d

w
g 

 A
ug

us
t 1

2,
 2

02
1 

10
:2

9:
46

 A
M

B13159B-01

August 12, 2021

3

R
U

S
S

E
LL

 C
O

U
N

T
Y

R
U

S
S

E
LL

 C
O

U
N

T
Y

, V
A

S
A

N
IT

A
R

Y
 L

A
N

D
F

IL
L

S
O

LI
D

 W
A

S
T

E
 P

E
R

M
IT

 N
O

. 5
15

En
gi

ne
er

in
g 

   
  S

ur
ve

yi
ng

   
   

En
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

l S
er

vi
ce

s

Vi
rg

in
ia

 B
ea

ch
, V

A

R
al

ei
gh

, N
C

Fa
ye

tte
vi

lle
, N

C

H
am

pt
on

 R
oa

ds
, V

A
C

ha
rlo

tte
sv

ill
e,

 V
A

R
ic

hm
on

d,
 V

A
22

06
 S

ou
th

 M
ai

n 
St

re
et

B
la

ck
sb

ur
g,

 V
A

 2
40

60
54

0-
55

2-
04

44
  F

ax
: 5

40
-5

52
-0

29
1

w
w

w
.d

aa
.c

om
N

or
th

er
n 

Vi
rg

in
ia

1/8" = 1'-0"

SG

EWG

EWG

1

EXISTING LEACHATE TANK
NO. 3 - 5,000 GALLONS

EXISTING LEACHATE TANK
NO. 2 - 5,000 GALLONS

EXISTING LEACHATE TANK
NO. 1 - 5,000 GALLONS

INSTALL FIVE (5) NEW
4,000 GALLON TANKS AND

CONCRETE PAD

INSTALL 4" PVC SCH. 80 PVC PIPE
WITH 18" COVER

INSTALL 4" GATE VALVE
AND CHECK VALVE IN

VALVE BOX AT GRADE

NOTES:

1.) LEACHATE TANKS NO. 1-3 SHALL HAVE
SUBMERSIBLE PUMPS INSTALLED AND
ASSOCIATES APPURTENANCES AS
SELECTED BY THE OWNER AND IN
ACCORDANCE WITH MANUFACTURER'S
RECOMMENDATIONS

2.) PIPING SHALL INCLUDE ALL FITTINGS
AND APPURTENANCES NECESSARY
TO PROVIDE A WORKING PRODUCT

DRAFT



DESIGNED BY:

DRAWN BY:

CHECKED BY:

SCALE:

DATE:

PROJECT NUMBER:

REVISIONS

OF

P
:\B

13
\1

00
\B

13
15

9B
\B

13
15

9B
-0

1\
C

A
D

\L
ea

ch
at

e 
D

ra
w

in
gs

\B
13

15
9B

-0
1 

P
ro

je
ct

 D
ra

w
in

gs
.d

w
g 

 A
ug

us
t 1

2,
 2

02
1 

10
:3

0:
31

 A
M

B13159B-01

August 12, 2021

3

R
U

S
S

E
LL

 C
O

U
N

T
Y

R
U

S
S

E
LL

 C
O

U
N

T
Y

, V
A

S
A

N
IT

A
R

Y
 L

A
N

D
F

IL
L

S
O

LI
D

 W
A

S
T

E
 P

E
R

M
IT

 N
O

. 5
15

En
gi

ne
er

in
g 

   
  S

ur
ve

yi
ng

   
   

En
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

l S
er

vi
ce

s

Vi
rg

in
ia

 B
ea

ch
, V

A

R
al

ei
gh

, N
C

Fa
ye

tte
vi

lle
, N

C

H
am

pt
on

 R
oa

ds
, V

A
C

ha
rlo

tte
sv

ill
e,

 V
A

R
ic

hm
on

d,
 V

A
22

06
 S

ou
th

 M
ai

n 
St

re
et

B
la

ck
sb

ur
g,

 V
A

 2
40

60
54

0-
55

2-
04

44
  F

ax
: 5

40
-5

52
-0

29
1

w
w

w
.d

aa
.c

om
N

or
th

er
n 

Vi
rg

in
ia

1/2" = 1'-0" 

SG

EWG

EWG

2

NOTES:

1.) ALL PIPING SHALL BE 4" SCH. 80 PVC.
2.) FLANGES ARE 8-BOLT PATTERN AND 7"
     CENTER TO CENTER.
3.) CONCRETE PAD SHALL BE SLOPED
     0.5% TO DRAIN.
4.) PROPOSED 4,000 GALLON TANKS TO

BE INSTALLED PER MANUFACTURER
RECOMMENDATION. FOR DETAILS SEE
SHEET 3.

5.) PIPING SHALL INCLUDE ALL FITTINGS
AND APPURTENANCES NECESSARY
TO PROVIDE A WORKING PRODUCT.

6.) FILL / DRAIN PIPING CAN BE INSTALLED
AT GRADE UP TO TANK. OVERFLOW
TO BE INSTALLED VIA PIPE RACK OR
SUPPORTS AS NEEDED.

7.) ALL WORK SHALL COMPLY WITH
LATEST NEC AND LOCAL BUILDING
CODES.

8.) CMU'S TO BE FILLED WITH 2000 PSI
CONCRETE AND FINISHED WITH
CHAMFERED EDGE.

INSTALL 4" PIPE BOOT

INSTALL CONCRETE SPILL CONTAINMENT PAD
(FOR DETAILS SEE SHEET 3).

24
.0

'

36.0'

TANK NO. 1
4,000 GALLONS

TANK NO. 2
4,000 GALLONS

TANK NO. 3
4,000 GALLONS

TANK NO. 5
4,000 GALLONS

TANK NO. 4
4,000 GALLONS

LINE LEGEND

4" SCH. 80 PVC OVERFLOW LINE

SYMBOL LEGEND
4" GATE VALVE

4" SCH. 80 PVC FILL / DRAIN LINE

4" CHECK VALVE

8"

INSTALL 4" PIPE BOOT

FILL

DRAIN

PROVIDE 18" COVER

ELBOW BELOW GRADE

INSTALL 4" CAM LOCK FITTING

O
VE

R
FL

O
W

O
VE

R
FL

O
W

O
VE

R
FL

O
W

4"x4"x4" TEE

INSTALL 4" PIPE TO DRAIN PAD
WITH VALVE AND CAM LOCK FITTING

DRAFT



DESIGNED BY:

DRAWN BY:

CHECKED BY:

SCALE:

DATE:

PROJECT NUMBER:

REVISIONS

OF

P
:\B

13
\1

00
\B

13
15

9B
\B

13
15

9B
-0

1\
C

A
D

\L
ea

ch
at

e 
D

ra
w

in
gs

\B
13

15
9B

-0
1 

P
ro

je
ct

 D
ra

w
in

gs
.d

w
g 

 A
ug

us
t 1

2,
 2

02
1 

10
:3

2:
11

 A
M

B13159B-01

August 12, 2021

3

R
U

S
S

E
LL

 C
O

U
N

T
Y

R
U

S
S

E
LL

 C
O

U
N

T
Y

, V
A

S
A

N
IT

A
R

Y
 L

A
N

D
F

IL
L

S
O

LI
D

 W
A

S
T

E
 P

E
R

M
IT

 N
O

. 5
15

En
gi

ne
er

in
g 

   
  S

ur
ve

yi
ng

   
   

En
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

l S
er

vi
ce

s

Vi
rg

in
ia

 B
ea

ch
, V

A

R
al

ei
gh

, N
C

Fa
ye

tte
vi

lle
, N

C

H
am

pt
on

 R
oa

ds
, V

A
C

ha
rlo

tte
sv

ill
e,

 V
A

R
ic

hm
on

d,
 V

A
22

06
 S

ou
th

 M
ai

n 
St

re
et

B
la

ck
sb

ur
g,

 V
A

 2
40

60
54

0-
55

2-
04

44
  F

ax
: 5

40
-5

52
-0

29
1

w
w

w
.d

aa
.c

om
N

or
th

er
n 

Vi
rg

in
ia

AS SHOWN

SG

EWG

EWG

3

8" X 17" CMU CONTAINMENT WALL

17
"

8"

2 COARSES OF 8" CMU FILLED AT CONCRETE.
MONO-POUR REQUIRED

INTERIOR JOINT BETWEEN CMU AND BASE SLAB TO BE
FILLED W/ NON-SHRINK GROUT. CMU'S TO BE COATED IN
BLOCK FILLTER ON EXTERIOR FOR WATER PROOFING.

#5 DOWELS @ 24" O.C.

4" SCH. 80 PVC PIPE

4" GATE VALVE4" GATE VALVE

OVERFLOW TO NEXT TANK

FILLDRAIN

2         TANK SCHEMATIC
SCALE: NOT TO SCALE

18
"

6"

4         SPILL CONTAINMENT PROFILE
SCALE: NOT TO SCALE

CONCRETE SLAB AND
SPILL CONTAINMENT WALL

DRAFT



 

WASTE AREA #3

2575

RFG

T

O

 
R

O

U

T

E

 
6

6

7

x

x

WASTE AREA # 2

W

GWMP-16

WASTE AREA #1

T

O

 
R

O

U

T

E

 
6

6

7

&

 
S

M

P

-
4

SCALEHOUSE

W

GWMP-4

NORTH

1 inch =             ft.
( IN FEET )

0500 500 1000

500

250

GRAPHIC SCALE

2000

2

1

0

0

2

2

0

0

2

3

0

0

2

4

0

0

2

5

0

0

2

5

5

0

2

5

5

0

2

5

0

0

2

5

0

0

2
4
0
0

2

3

0

0

2

3

0

0

2200

2
1
0
0

2

5

0

0

2

4

5

0

2

3

5

0

2

4

0

0

2

3

0

0

2

4

5

0

2

4

5

0

2

4

0

0

2

4

5

0

2

4

5

0

GWMP-2

FIGURESCALE:

PLAN NO.

DESIGNED
DRAWN
CHECKED
DATE

 P
:\B

13
\1

00
\B

13
15

9B
\B

13
15

9B
-0

1\
C

A
D

\B
13

15
9B

-0
1 

P
O

T
E

N
T

IO
M

E
T

R
IC

 S
U

R
F

A
C

E
 M

A
Y

 2
01

7.
dw

g 
 S

ep
 2

0,
 2

01
8 

 3
:3

4p
m

Draper Aden Associates
Engineering      Surveying      Environmental Services

Fayetteville, NC
Hampton Roads, VA Northern Virginia
Charlottesville, VA 

Raleigh, NCRichmond, VA2206 South Main Street
Blacksburg, VA 24060

540-552-0444  Fax: 540-552-0291
2

1"=500'

B13159B-01

POTENTIOMETRIC SURFACE  MAP - APRIL 30, 2018

RUSSELL COUNTY LANDFILL
RUSSELL COUNTY, VIRGINIA

WMD
DLD
SN
9/20/18

LEGEND

W

GWMP-4

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
AREA TRANSFER STATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROXIMATE LIMITS PERMIT # 258

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROXIMATE  LIMITS PERMIT # 258

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROXIMATE LIMITS OF WASTE

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROXIMATE LIMITS OF WASTE

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROXIMATE LIMITS  PERMIT # 515

AutoCAD SHX Text
JOHNSON CEMETERY

AutoCAD SHX Text
MW-7

AutoCAD SHX Text
2292.15

AutoCAD SHX Text
NES-1S

AutoCAD SHX Text
2483.64

AutoCAD SHX Text
MW-6

AutoCAD SHX Text
2487.41

AutoCAD SHX Text
MW-4

AutoCAD SHX Text
2447.01

AutoCAD SHX Text
MW-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2360.04

AutoCAD SHX Text
MW-3

AutoCAD SHX Text
MW-2

AutoCAD SHX Text
2000

AutoCAD SHX Text
2000

AutoCAD SHX Text
2100

AutoCAD SHX Text
2100

AutoCAD SHX Text
2200

AutoCAD SHX Text
2300

AutoCAD SHX Text
2400

AutoCAD SHX Text
2200

AutoCAD SHX Text
2300

AutoCAD SHX Text
2400

AutoCAD SHX Text
2500

AutoCAD SHX Text
2500

AutoCAD SHX Text
2400

AutoCAD SHX Text
2300

AutoCAD SHX Text
2300

AutoCAD SHX Text
2400

AutoCAD SHX Text
2400

AutoCAD SHX Text
2300

AutoCAD SHX Text
2300

AutoCAD SHX Text
2400

AutoCAD SHX Text
2300

AutoCAD SHX Text
TANK 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
TANK 2

AutoCAD SHX Text
TANK 4

AutoCAD SHX Text
2300

AutoCAD SHX Text
TANK 3

AutoCAD SHX Text
2320.67

AutoCAD SHX Text
2281.93

AutoCAD SHX Text
2300

AutoCAD SHX Text
MW-4

AutoCAD SHX Text
2400

AutoCAD SHX Text
2447.01

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING TOPOGRAPHIC CONTOURS (50' INTERVAL)

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPERTY BOUNDARY 

AutoCAD SHX Text
GROUNDWATER FLOW  DIRECTION 

AutoCAD SHX Text
ESTIMATED EQUIPOTENTIAL LINE (ft. MSL)

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING MONITORING WELL AND GROUNDWATER ELEVATION.

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROXIMATE LIMITS OF WASTE

AutoCAD SHX Text
MW-6

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING MONITORING WELL OUT OF NETWORK

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING LEACHATE MONITORING LOCATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
TANK 4

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING WATER SUPPLY WELL

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING SURFACE WATER MONITORING LOCATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
GWMP-2



Russell County BOS 
VDOT Update 
September 2, 2021 

Route 615 Slide (Back Valley) 

VDOT is nearing completion of a plan of action for this slide. The anticipated repairs are 
anticipated to focus on stabilizing the road platform. Efforts are continuing to identify funding for the 
repairs. 

Pure Salmon Project 

VDOT has received the internal road plans for the project. The proposed connection to Route 19 
was previously approved. We understand Industrial Access funds may be pursued for the 
construction of the road. The residency will review the plans with Industrial Access fund 
requirements in mind. 

St Paul Welcome Center 

The residency understands plans are moving forward for the welcome center in St Paul along 
Alternate Route 58.  Residency staff look forward to reviewing plans for the project. 

Maintenance Activities 

Maintenance crews are actively involved in a variety of activities. Some hand patching continues 
as work load and weather conditions allow. Patching activities are anticipated to continue through 
the summer interspersed with other maintenance activities. 

Slurry sealing and repaving of various routes within the County basically complete. 

Mowing continues on 2-lane primary secondary routes. 

Stabilized (gravel) roads are being worked along with ditching at various locations in the County. 

The drain pipe replacement on Rt 67 just west of the intersection with Pine Creek has been 
rescheduled and is anticipated to be completed in August. 

The section of Route 601 impacted by slide repairs last fall has been repaved. 

Tumbez Hollow Rural Rustic Drainage Resolution 

Residency staff is continuing work on an agreement with a private landowner for other work 
included in the project as well as continuing environmental permitting efforts. 

Thomas Warner Rural Rustic Project 

The residency has not yet received environmental clearance yet, but intends to begin construction 
shortly after receiving clearance. 



 

 
Construction Projects 
 
The bridge replacement on Route 663 (Rocky Fork Road) for which the Board approved closure of 
the route in June will be closed on or near September 1st. This is a slight delay from the original 
anticipated closure date but the completion date of early December is not anticipated to be 
impacted.  
 
 
 
Residency staff stand ready to respond to inquiries and provide explanations but also offer the 1-
800-FOR-ROAD call to enter work order requests into VDOT’s tracking system. 



 

www.apa.virginia.gov | (804) 225-3350 | reports@apa.virginia.gov 
 

 

 

 
 August 5, 2021 
 
 
The Honorable Ann S. McReynolds  
Clerk of the Circuit Court  
County of Russell 
 
Rebecca Dye, Board Chairperson 
County of Russell 
 
Audit Period:  April 1, 2020, through March 31, 2021  
Court System: County of Russell 
 
 

We have audited the cash receipts and disbursements of the Clerk of the Circuit Court for this 
locality for the period noted above.  Our primary objectives were to test the accuracy of financial 
transactions recorded on the Court’s financial management system; evaluate the Court’s internal 
controls; and test its compliance with significant state laws, regulations, and policies.   
 
Management’s Responsibility 
 

Court management has responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls and 
complying with applicable laws and regulations.  Internal control is a process designed to provide 
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting, effectiveness and 
efficiency of operations, and compliance with applicable laws and regulations.  Deficiencies in internal 
controls could possibly lead to the loss of revenues or assets, or otherwise compromise fiscal 
accountability. 
 

We noted no matters involving internal control and its operation necessary to bring to 
management’s attention. 
  

http://www.apa.virginia.gov/
mailto:reports@apa.virginia.gov


   

 

Ann S McReynolds, Clerk of the Circuit Court 
Rebecca Dye, Board Chairperson 
August 5, 2021 
Page Two 
 
 

We acknowledge the cooperation extended to us by the Clerk and her staff during this 
engagement.   
  
  
 Staci Henshaw 
 AUDITOR OF PUBLIC ACCOUNTS 
 
 
SAH:rh 
 
 
cc: The Honorable Brian K. Patton, Chief Judge 
 Lonzo Lester, County Administrator 
 Paul F. DeLosh, Director of Judicial Services 
    Supreme Court of Virginia 
 Director, Admin and Public Records 
    Department of Accounts  
  



John.Bolling
PolyLine

John.Bolling
PolyLine

John.Bolling
PolyLine

John.Bolling
Line

John.Bolling
PolyLine

John.Bolling
PolyLine

John.Bolling
Highlight

John.Bolling
Rectangle

John.Bolling
Callout
Section 1:  0.05 mile  Rte 624 re-numbered to Rte 637

John.Bolling
Polygon

John.Bolling
Callout
Section 2: Discontinued 0.02 mile.  Old bridge marked in orange .  30 ft Prescriptive Easement right of way.

John.Bolling
Callout
Section 3:  Discontinued 0.05 mile.  30 ft Prescriptive Easement right of way.

John.Bolling
Callout
Section 6:  Rte 803.  Discontinued 0.04 mi.  Fee right of way.  

John.Bolling
PolyLine

John.Bolling
PolyLine

John.Bolling
Callout
Section 4:  Rte 624.  Addition 0.07 mile.  Fee right of way

John.Bolling
Highlight

John.Bolling
Callout
Section 5:  Rte 624.  Addition 0.03 mi.  Includes replacement bridge.

John.Bolling
Typewritten Text
Hwy System ChangesAPPROVED 04-07-1975



(i) RUSSELL COUNTY

0 50 ft 100 ft 

www.interactiveGIS.com Printed O 5/18/2021 

Tracy
Highlight





64, 

SANITATION OFFICER 

Upon motion made, seconded and duly passed by the Board that Kenneth 

Frank Ball of Honaker, Va. be hired as Sanitation Officer under Public Service 

Employment Program, Title II. 

Meeting adjourned, 

 4) ;7/2 :/AJJYL!
Cerkoflloard 

March 3, 1975 

Chariman .. 

At a regular meeting of the Russell County Board of Supervisors held 

at the Courthouse in Lebanon, Virginia on Monday, March 3, 1975 at 10: 00 a.m. 

PRESENT: R. W, Dickenson, Chairman 
Miles Hillman 
R. H. Puckett 
Dr. Roy Smith . 
Robert J. Bobic, Clerk of Board
H. D. Campbell, D. S. 

Meeting called to order. 

Minutes of meetings of February 3 and 7th were read and approved. 

RURAL TRANSPORTATION PLAN 

Harold Lindsey appeared before th·e Board in regard to proposed trans-

portation plan for Cumberland Plateau four county area, Board advised they 

would study these plans and take under advisement. 

AREAWIDE AGENCY FOR AGING 
APPALACHIAN AGENCY FOR SENIOR CITIZENS, Inc.

Upon motion made by ;Herman Puckett, seconded by Roy R. Smith and duly 

passed by Board that following resolution be adopted: 

R E S  O L U  T I  0'N 

WHEREAS, by earlier resolution, it was resolved to establish an areawide 

agency on aging lmot-m as the Appalachi n Agency for Senior Citizens, Inc., and 

WHEREAS, it is necessary for the counties party to this agreement to 

establish the powers, duties, prbrileges and authority of said agency, 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED: 

(a) That the undersigned counties do hereby establish Articles of

Incorporation for a non-stock, not-for-profit corporation kno m as the Appalachian 

Agency for Senior Citizens, Inc., said Articles being attached hereto and made 

a part hereof: 

(b) That the duration of the corporation is to be perpetual, unless

terminated by the members as set forth hereinafter; 

(c) That the corporation shall exercise all powers belonging to,

and inherent in, a corporation in the Commonwealth of Virginia, and shall also 

exercise such powers belonging to or inherent in the undersigned Boards of 

Sup 1:visors, which may be lawfully delega-t:ed by same by virtue of Section 15.1-21, 

Virginia Gode, in order to carry out the purposes of the corporation: 

(d)'That the purposes of the corporation shall be to exist and function 

as the official "area agency" for Buchanan, Dickenson, Russell and/or Tazewell 

Counties and to do all those things permitte  and/or required by the Older 

Americans Act, 42 U.S. Code, Chapter 35, of an "area agency'', including planning, 

execution of services and coordination of services for the four county area; 

J 

:J 

j 

J 



_) 

I 

__ j 

_ J  

65 

-  - - - - - -  - - - - - - - - - -  - - - - - - - - -  - - - - - - - - - - -  - - -  - ,
-----,--p-x_·_o_h __ i_b_i t-e_d_b_y_t_h_e '-'O lder Americans Act". This will include any and all grants of ·1

. . . 

the "federal" and "state" government, and such funds as members shall donate from I 

time to time or as shall be required of the agency or members for local participa-

tion in any "federal" and/or "state" grant. 

(f) That the corporation shall be terminated by majority vote of the

members upon termination of area agencies under the Older Americans Act or the 

repeal of that Act. Any property belonging to the corporation at the time of term1 

ination shall be divided as equally as possible among all members, and if not 

equally divisible, then sold, exchanged or assigned to the_highest public 

bidder after sufficient public notice for four weeks, the proceeds to be divided 

equally among all members. Any provisions herein contrary to Federal or State law 

shall not be applicable. 

(g) That this resolution of agreement shall be effective for each county

when executed by the Board of Supervisors for that particular county, pursuant 

to majority vote. 

 he Vote was: 

Aye: All members 

Nay: None 
ARTICILES OF INCORPORATION 

OF 
THE APPALACHIAN AGENCY FOR SENIOR CITIZENS, INC.

This is to certify that we, the undexsigned, desire to, and hereby do, 

associate to incorporate exclusively on a no -for-pxofit basis under the pxovis-

ions and subject to the requirements of law of the Commonwe·alth of Virginia. 

·ARTICLE I

The name of the corporation shall be the Appalachian Agency fox Senior 

Citizens, Inc. 

ARTICLE II 

This non-stock, not-for-pxofit corpoxation is organized entirely for the 

purpose of being the official agency £or the Counties of Buchanan, Russell and 

Tazewell, Virginia, to plan, implement and coordinate sq1:vices pursuant to and 

a  pexmitted by Chapter 35, Title 42 of the U.S. C?de, corrpnonly known as the 

Older Americans Act, an Act designed to promote, through planning and gxants, a 

higher level of social sexvices for older or senior citizens. 

ARTICLE III 

The corporation shall be non-stock. 

ARTICLE IV 

There shall be one class of three members, whose voting rights are 

restricted as set foxth in Axticle VII hereinafter. 

ARTICLE V

The Board of Dixectors shall consist of 12 individuals. The Boards of 

Supexvisors of each county aforementioned shall choose four membexs each, 

, initially one member from each county serving a period of tnree years, two 

members from each county serving for a period of two years, and one member 

from each county serving for a period of one year. Thereafter, each newly 

appointed member shall. sexve fo:r, a period of two years_. A director must be 

a duly qualified electox and taxpayer of the county from which he is chosen. A 



- - - - - - - __ ,,_.._u_n_e_x_p ir e_d_t_e_r m_ by. ;ajo;ity  ;t -- f- he Board of Superv sors w o appointed t e l

l 

resigning, deceased or disabled director, 

· ARTICLE VI

The Corporation shall purchase and maintain an insurance policy on 

behalf of any person who is a director or officer of said corporation to protect 

against any liability or claim asserted against him arising out of his capacity 

as such, whether or not the corporation has the power to indemnify him against 

such liability under the provisions of Section 13.1-3.1 of the Code of Virginia. 

ARTICLE VII 

The corporation may be terminated by majority vote.of the members upon 

the termination of "area agencies" under the Older Americans Act, the termination 

or repeal of that Act, or the failure of the State Agency on Aging to designate 

the Corporation as an official area agency. Any property belonging to the 

Corporation at the time of ter mination shall be divided as equally as possible 

among all members, and if not divisible, then sold, exchanged or assigned to the 

highest public bidder after sufficient public notice for four weeks, and the 

proceeds divided equally among all members, Any provision herein contrary to 

Federal or State law shall not be applicable. 

ARTICLE VIII 

The initial registered office shall be located at the offices of White, 

Elliott & Bundy Attorneys, Post Office box 600, Flannagan Avenue, Lebanon, 

Virginia 24266. The initial registered agent shall be James Wm.Elliott, Jr., 

whose business address is the same as the initial registered office, and who is 

a resident of Virginia and a member of the Virginia State Bar, 

ARTICLE IX 

The number of directors constituting t e initial Board of Directors shall 

be 12. They are: 

Lawrence Lindsay - Vansant Virginia 24656 

Marie Owens 

H. M. Thomas 

- Vansant, Virginia 24656 

- Grundy, Va. 24614

Grace Woolridge - Oakwood, Virginia 24631

Ru.th Adkins - Cedar Bluff, Virginia 24609

Paul Brown - Honaker, Virginia 24260 

Dewey Cain - Dante, Virginia 24237 

Charles McFarlane - Lebanon, Virginia 24266 

ARTicLE X 

The corporation shall be of perpetual duration, unless terminated as 

set forth by a majority vote of the embers hereof. 

ARTICLE XI 

I Articles 

The number of directors may only be changed by amendment to the 

of Incorporation, 



I I 

SCHOOL BOARD 

Upon motion made by Herman Puckett, seconded by Miles Hillman and duly 

passed the following resolution was adopted: 

R E S O L U T I O N 

WHEREAS, the 1974-75 School Operation Budget reflects a 40% increase 

over the 1973-74 schooi budget for purpose of purchasing fuel for Russell County 

II 

Schools; and 

WHEREAS, the fuel cost through March 3, has exeeded the total 1974-75 

I budget appropriations by $22,662.74; and 

I WHEREAS, it is anticipated that additional fuel will be purchased before 

the end of the 1974-75 fiscal year. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Russell County School Board 

requests permission of the Board of Supervisors to make tra 'sf r of appropriations 

in the amount of $9,000.00 from Summer School 17h and $21,000,00 from School 

Food Services 17e to Operation of School Plant 17fi, 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the County School Operations Budget appropria 

tion be changed as follows: 

17a Administration $ 116,592.00 
17bl Instruction 3,737,020.00 
17b3 Other Instructional costs 539,182.00 
17c  ttendance & Health Services 99,660.00 
17dl Pupil Transportation Services381,698.00 
17d2 Replacement Transp. Vehicles 59,844.00
17e School Food Services 529,000.00
17fl Operation of School Plqnt 384,151,00 
17f2 Maintenance of School Plant 162,495.00 
17g Fixed Charges 128, 955. 00 
17h Summer School 16,850.00 
17i Adult Education 63,171 .. 00 
17j Other Educational Programs 15,000.00 

The Vote was: 

Aye: All members. 
Nay: None 

96,233,618.00 

RUSSELL COUNTY SCHOOL BOARD 

Upon Motion made, seconded and <t,uly passed by Board that ·following 

resolution be adopted: 

R E S O L U T I O N .  

WHEREAS, under the County Board form of Government, the Russell County 

Board of Supervisors has the absolute power to appoint the County School Board 

members; and 

WHEREAS, under both State law and the Russell County School Board 

regulations, it was always understood that after the "AT LARGE" Supervisor had 

been elected that additional members of the School Board would be appointed; and 

WHEREAS, acting under the authority of Section 22-61 of the 19·50 Code of 

Virginia, as amended, the Russell County Board of Supervisors did appoint Clyde 

Bostic and Clyde Grizzle to the Russell County ·school Board on June 21, 1974; and 

WHEREAS, two of the members of the Russell County School Board have 

deliberately flaunted the decision of the duly elected representatives of 

Russell County by refu ing to allow the said Bostic and Grizzle to take their 

seats and to have their votes counted on the Russell County School Board and have 

thereby caused millions of dollars of Russell County tax funds to be spent without 

!proper legal sanction; and

67 



67 

SCHOOL BOARD 

Upon motion made by Herman Puckett, 

passed the following resolution was adopted: 

· - - - ,---------: seconded by Miles Hillman and duly 
j 

R E S O L U T I O N 

WHEREAS, the 1974-75 School Operation Budget reflects a 40% increase 

over the 1973-74 schooi budget for purpose of purchasing fuel for Russell County 

Schools; and 

WHEREAS, the fuel cost through March 3, has exeeded the total 1974-75 

budget appropriations by $22,662.74; and 

WHEREAS, it is anticipated that additional fuel will be purchased before 

the end of the 1974-75 fiscal year. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Russell County School Board 

requests permission of the Board of Supervisors to make transfer of appropriations 

in the amount of $9,000.00 from Summer School 17h and $21,000.00 from School 

Food Services 17e to Operation of School Plant 17fi. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the County School Operations Budget appropria 

tion be changed as follows : 

17a Administration $116,592.00 
17bl Instruction 3,737,020.00 
17b3 Other Instructional costs 539,182.00 
17c Attendance & Health Services 99,660.00 
17dl Pupil Transportation Services381,69B.OO 
17d2 Replacement Transp. Vehicles 59,844.00 
17e School Food Services 529,000.00 
17£1 Operation of School Plant 384,151,00 
17£2 Maintenance of School Plant 162,495.00 
17g Fixed Charges 128,955.00 
17h Summer School 16,850.00 
17i Adult Education 63,171.00 
17j Other Educational Programs 15,000.00 

$6,233,618.00 

The Vote was: 

Aye: All members 
Nay: None 

RUSSELL COUNTY SCHOOL BOARD 

Upon Motion made, seconded and <iuly passed by Board that 'following 

resolution be adopted: 

R E S O L U T I O N .  

WHEREAS, under the County Board form of Government, the Russell County 

Board of Supervisors has the absolute power to appoint the County School Board 

members; and 

WHEREAS, under both State law and the Russell County School Board 

regulations, it was always understood that after the "AT LARGE" Supervisor had 

been elected that additional members of the School Board would be appointed; and 

WIEREAS, acting under the authority of Section 22-61 of the 19·50 Code of 

Virginia, as amended, the Russell County Board of Supervisors did appoint Clyde 

Bostic and Clyde Grizzle to the Russell County ·school Board on June 21, 1974; and 

WHEREAS, two of the members of the Russell County School Board have 

deliberately flaunted the decision of the duly elected representatives of 

Russell County by refu11ing to allow the said Bostic and Grizzle to take their 

seats and to have their votes counted on the Russell County School Board and have 

,thereby caused millions of dollars of Russell County tax funds to be spent without 

1lproper legal sanction; and



68 

have accomplished the above by holding illegal meetings and electing illegal 

chairman in violation of Virginia law and Russell County School regulations; and 

WHEREAS, this Board has,after an exhaustive study,concluded that there 

is much mismanagement and waste and politics in the Russell County School System; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Russell County Board of Supervisors 

that henceforth no tax funds of this County over $25,00 shall be expended by or 

for the Russell County School System or any program under it  jurisdiction unless 

it be paid by check countersigned by the Russell County Administrator; and 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Russell County Administrator is hereby 

ordered not to countersign any such check without first receiving the contract, 

order, or invoice upon which the expenditure is based signed by no less than three 

of the five members of the Russell County School Board as approving the same; 

and 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that subject to the laws of Virginia, anyone 

signing any such check over $25.00 from Russell County funds for any School 

Board expense without a copy of such signed contract or invoice shall be held 

personally liable for the same and the Commonwealth's Attorney ( with the help 

of the law firm of Smith, Robinson and Vinyard if necessary) is hereby instructed 

to take any and all legal proceedings to regain any sums spent or paid in 

violation of this resolution. 

The only EXCEPTION to this resolution shall be checks to teachers 
bus d,•ivers, maintenance personnel, cafeteria. workers, and other school personne/ 
hired for the 1974-75 school year paid for salary under their contracts, Such 

salary checks may be paid without the contracts but they must nevertheless be 

signed by the County Administrator. 

The Vote was: 

Aye: Dr. Roy Smith, Miles Hillman and R. W. Dickenson 

Herman Puckett abstained from voting, 

TOWN HALL BUILDING 

Richard Cozzolino, Tm-m Manager appeared before the Board with regard 

to negotiating sale of old town hall building to the County, The purchase 

pr ce asked was $22,500, 00 plus seven year free lease for ground floor se·ction 

to be used by Fire Department as now being occupied. 

Board advised they would consider said offer and advise of their 

decision'by Thursday of this week. 

RUSSELL COUNTY WATER & SEWER AUTHORITY 

Upon motion made, seconded and duly passed by the Board that the 

following named be and hereby is appointed to the Russell County Water and Sewer 

Authority Connnittee for a three year term to run from 3-6-75 thru 3-6-78: 

l, John Minahan 
2. Fred Phillips
3, E. D. Hilton 
4. H. B. Compton
5. Stan Banner (replacing Jack Milton).

I 
,_J 

I 

I I 

,_I 

I I 

:J 



_ I

COSTS RELATING TO CANNERIES TO 
BE PAID FROM REVENUE SHARING 

Upon motion made, seconded and duly passed by Board that W, W. Barrett, 

Treasurer, be and hereby is directed to pay to Beeson & Beeson, Architects, 

Charles R. Day, Associate, the amount of $6,371.40 as architect's fee and to 

pay to J, G. Adams Builders, Inc,, $8,802.18 which said amount being due in 

accordance with Certificate for payment no. 1 with regard to work completed 

by J. G. Adams, Builders, 1nc. on Castlewood and Honaker Canneries, less 

retainage of 10%. Said payments to be charged to Revenue Sharing account, 

The Vote was: 

Aye: All members . 

Nay: None 

LEBANON INSURANCE AGENCY 

Upon motion made, seconded and duly passed that warrants be issued in 

payment of premiums due for policy no. SMP 398176 with USF & G $1492, 00, 

this being second installment and policy no. 5XL 16 311 LMC Boiler & Machinery 

policy - three year term $259.00;and plicy OPJ 38934 USF & G Workmen's 

Compensation $1847.00. 

It is further resolved that coverage on Dante Community Center be 

added to coverage if not already insured, 

The Vote was: 

Aye: All members 

Nay: None 

DANTE CONMUNITY CENTER 

Mr. Gene Hilton appeared befo e the Board ·with regard to materials 

needed to get Dante Community Center into operating condition and to get ramp 

constructed at building, the Board, upon motion made by Herman Puckett, seconded 

by Dr. Roy Smith and duly passed Robert J. Bobic, County Administrator, be 

authorized to work with Mr. Hilton in purchasing needed equipment for Center, 

and also authorize Jerry Ingle to construct ramp at labor bid of $710.00. 

BILLS AFPROVED 

Upon motion made, seconded and duly passed that bills, as presented, 

be and hereby are approved for payment, 

SWORDS CREEK COMMUNTIY CENTER 

Upon motion made, seconded and duly passed that Robert J. Bobic, County 

Administrator be and he hereby is authorized to work with personnel of Swords 

Creek Community Center with regard to purchasing needed furnishings and materials 

to repair said building. 

RUSSELL COUNTY EDUCATION ASSO_s;.IATION 

Cheryl Wallace, representing Russell County Education Association 

appeared before Board and presented signed petitions from teachers of each 

County school asking that when considering 75-76 budget that county pay 100% 

of health Insurance coverage; 12% cost of living expenses and relief from 

duty thru teacher aids of at least one period each day. Mrs. Wallace state.  

that health insurance coverage was first priority and that several Insurance 

Companies had been saked to present bids for said group coverage. 

69 



70 

:·.-_-_1 
HIGHWAY DEPARTMENT . . . . . . . ·1·.. . ....

Upon motion made, seconded and duly passed that following resolution be 

: _.=e.:.C.:.:.""'·· ·-• 

R E S  O L u·T I O N  

 ffiEREAS, Secondary Route 637, from Int. Rte. 624 to 0.07 MS Rte. 803, 

a distance of 0.10 miles, has been altered, and a new road has been constructed 

and q.pproved by the State Highway Commissioner, which new road serves the same 

citizens as the road so altered; ·and 

WHEREAS, certain sections of this new road follow new locations, these 

being sh01;m on the attached sketch titled, "Changes in Secondary System Due 

to Relocation and Construction on Route 637, Budget Item 0637-6054 dated at 

Lebanon, Virginia February 24, 1975. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED: That the portions. of Secondary Route 

637, i.e., Section 4 and 5, shown in red on the sketch titled, "Changes in 

Secondary System Due to Relocation and Construction on Route 637, Budget Item 

0637-6054, dated at Lebanon, Virginia February 24, 1975", a total distance of 

0.10 miles, be and hereby is, added to the Secondary System of State Highways, 

pursuant to Section 33.1-229 of the Code of Virginia of 1950, as amended; 

AND FURTHER, that the State Highway Commission be requested to take 

necessary action to discontinue the sections of old location, i.e., Section 2 

and 3, shown in yellow on the aforementioned sketch, a total distance of 0.07 

miles, as a part of the secondary System of State Highways as provided in 

Section 33.1-150 of the Code of Virginia of 1950, as amended, 

HIGID?AY DEPARTMENT 
Upon motion made, seconded and duly pass!"d by Board that following 

resolution be adopted: 
R E S O L U T I O N 

WHEREAS, Secondary Route 803, from Original Rte. 63 7, to new location 

Rte. 637, a distance of O. 04- miles has been altered, and a new road has been 

constructed and approved by the State Highway Commissioner, which new road 

serves the same citizens as the road so altered; and 

WHEREAS, certain sections of this new ro.ad follow ne1-1 locations, 

these being shown on the attached sketch titled, "Changes in Secondary System 

Due to Relocation and Construction on Route 803, Budget Item 0637-6054 

dated at Lebanon, Virginia February 24, 1975." 

And further, -that the State Highway Commission be requested to take 

the necessary action to discontinue the sections of old location, i.e., Sections 

6, shown in yellow on the aforementioned sketch, a total distance of 0.04 miles, 

as a part of the Secondary System of State Highways as provided in Section 33.l 

-150 of the Code of Virginia of 1950, as amended.

HIGmqAY DEPARTMENT 

Upon motion made, seconded and duly passed by the Board that the folio ,  

ing resolution be adopted: 

R E S 0 L U T I 0 N 

WHEREAS, Secondary Route 636, from Int. Rte. 633, to 0.22 miles S.E. 

Rt. 633, a distance of 0.22 miles, has been altered and a new road has been 

u 

"i 
i 



WHEREAS, certain sections of this new road follow new locations, these 

being shown on the attached sketch titled, "Changes in Secondary System Due to 

Relocation and Construction on Route 636, Project 0636-083-133, G5Ql dated at 

Richmond, Virginia 2-20-75." 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED: That the portions of Secondary Route 

636 i.e, section 2, shown in red on the sketch titled, "Changes in Secondary 

System Due to Relocation and Construction on Route 636, Project 0636-083-133,G501, 

dated at Richmond, Virginia 2-20-75", a total distance of 0.443 miles, be and 

hereby is, added to the Secondary System of State Highways,_ pursuant to Section 

33.1-229 of the Code of Virginia of 1950, as amended. 

And further, that the seciona of old location, i.e., Section 3, shown 

in blue on the aforemention sketch, a total distance of 0.14 miles, be, and 

the same hereby is abandoned as a public road, pursuant to Section 33.1-155 of 

the Code of Virginia of 1950, as amended, 

1975 National lifildlife Week Proclamation 

lJpon motion made, seconded and duly passed that the following 

resolution be a ppted,.: 

R E S O L U T I O N 

WHEREAS, the Wildlife bestowed by Nature upon our world has ever been 

a source of beauty, inspiration and enjoyment to the people of Russell County; 

and, 

WHEREAS, this same wildlife brings many other benefits to man and 

his uivilization; and 

WHE[IBAS, many forms of wildlife are prospering·, many others need our 

 elp; and 

WHEREAS, citizen concern is always needed, _to foster and perpetuate 

conditions enhancing survival of wildlife; and 

WHEREAS, the preservation of wildlife habitat is- the· single most importan 

factor in wildli'fe conservation; and. 

WHEREAS, the period  farch 16 -22, 1975.has been designated as a special 

time for expression of concern for wildlife habitat; now, · therefore, 

BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of Supervisors of Russell County do 

hereby join the National Wildlife Federation in proclaiming March 16 - 22, 1975, 

as National W:i.lflife Week, uring our citizenry to affirm with the Fede.:t:ation that 

"We Care About Wildlife Habitat." 

Mee ti rig adj ournlc'd. 

Cler : lrta {{ 
( ,,  ,-t,,v 

Chairman 

MARCH 6, 1975 

At a called meeting of the Russell County Board of Supervisors held at 

Courthouse in Lebanon, Va. on March 6, 1975. 

PRESENT: R. W. Dickenson, Chairman 
Miles Hillman 
R.H. Puckett 
DR. Roy Smith 
Robert J. Bobic, Clerk of Board 
Frank Norris, Resident Engineer - Dept. of Highways 

Meeting called to order. 

71 



72 

RUSSELL COUNTY SCHOOL BOARD 

Upon motion made by Miles Hillm n, seconded by Roy Smith and duly passed 

by Board that following resolution be adopted: 

R E S O L U T I O N  

1lliEREAS, $614,400 was appropriated iri the 1974-75 Capital Outlay Budget 

for the construction of the Russell County Vocational School addition; and 

1lliEREAS, payments in the amount of $578,742.44 have been made as of 

February 3, 1975; and 

WHEREAS, Click Construction Company representative has estimated that 

as of June 30, 1975, they will have completed and billed the Russell County 

School Board for an additional $575,000. in excess of the $614,400. originally 

budgeted; and 

1lliEREAS, appropriations from the Board of Supervisors are insufficient 

to make full payment for the additional $575,000. · and construction cannot 

continue without said appropriation; and 

WHEREAS, $75,000 of the required $149,500 local matching money is available, 

and can be transferred from the County School Operating Budget. 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that because of the aforementioned reasons, 

the Russell County School Board respectfully requests that the Russell County 

Board of Supervisors increase the Capital Outlay Budget appropriations by 

$288,461 thus increasing the Capital Outlay Budget total from $1,225,307 to 

$1,513,768, 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the School Board requests that $75,000. 

be transferred from the County School Operating Fund to the Capital Outlay 

and Debt Service Fund in order that construction may continue on the Russell 

County Vocational School addition, 

The Vote was: 
,_Aye: R. W. Dick_enson, Miles Hillman and Roy Smith 

R.H. Yuckett not present 

ANNUAL ROAD MEETING 

The apnual road meeting of representative of the Department of Highways 

with the :,Board of Supervisors a!).d the citizens r same having been advertised as
.,_. 

required by statute, Mr.· J''raJ:)k,· Nor;ds ,:,•RE-sident; E_ngineer for the Department 

of.Highways for Russell County, met with the ·Board and di,scussed w:j.th the Board an 

citizens present, the plans and proposals for the expenditure of the Secondary 

Road Funds allocated to Russell County for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 

1975, after which discussion the members of the Board of Supervi;sors agreed to 

submit their recommendations in order of priority at a later date, 

adjourned. 

l ! ).J - 8 - -,,_( . - ,  

_ J  

I I 

I I 

.....J 

I I 
i__j 



I I 

LJ 

MARCH 14, 1975 

At an adjourned . meeting of the Russell County Board of Supervisors on 

Friday the 14th day of March, 1975, held at the Courthouse in Lebanon, Virginia 

at 10:00 a.m. 

PRESENT: R. W. Dickenson, Chairman
Miles Hillman 
Dr. Roy 'Smith 

Upori mqtion made, seconded and duly passed by the Board that the 

following resolution be adopted: 

R B S O L U T I O N 

WHEREAS, the Russell County Board of Supervisors has had a suit 

filed against it by Harold Mitchell and C. B. Yates alleging to be a majority 

of the Russell Cou:rity Scliool ·Board; and 

WHEREAS, S. Strother Smith, III, of the law ffrm of Smith, Robinson 

& Vinyard, is an Attorney who is especially knowledgeable about Virginia School 

Law and especially with the situation in Russell County; and, 

WHEREAS, the Commonwealth's Attorney of Russell County is heavily 

jOVerburdened with the criminal docket of Russell County; 

THREFORE, BB IT RESOLVED, that the Commonwealth's Attorney is hereby 

directed to retain the assistance of the law firm of Smith, Robinson & Vinyard
to draw all pleadings and to assist in the arguing of said litigation, at an hourly 

rate of $45.00 per hour, plus-their exp nses, as invoiced on a monthly basis, 

which fees, the County Administrator is hereby directed to pay. 

The Vote was: 

Aye: R. W. Dickenson, Miles Hillman and Dr. Roy R. 'Smith 

R. H. Puckett not present. 

Meeting adjourned 

APRIL 7, 1975 

At a regular meeting of the Russell County Board of Supervisors 

hel''d at the Courthouse in Lebanon on April 7, 1975, at 10:00 a.m. 

PRESENT: R, W. D:i:ckenson, Chariman 
R. H. Puckett 
Miles Hillman 
Dr. Roy R. Smith 
H. D. Campbell, D.S. 
R. J. Bobic, Clerk of Board 

Meeting called to order. 

Minutes of meetings of March 3, March 6, and March ; 14, were read 

and approved. 

LEBANON TOWN HALL 

Upon motion made, seconded and duly passed by the Board that To,m of. 

Lebanon be made the following offer with regard to purchasing the building located 

at the back of the courthouse forrneriy used by to,m offices: 

1. $15,000.00 purchase price with five iear f1;ee lease reserved

for use by Fire Department of lower section of building as now occupied by said 

Fire Department; or ....... 

73 

!



'i 

'Jr J 
,, 

\ 
.. 

., ' ·• 

April 7, 1975 

Board of S pervieor• of Ruaa,11 Cowtr 
C•atlewood, Vitginla 242i4 

G1uitle111en: 

Second•ry  y•t m 
Addit:ion 'rs 
Russell County----

A• requested in resolptton by rour Board on March 3, 1975, the 
following addition to tha s,eondary Syetijm of Russell county is 
h reby approved, eff ctivu April 7, 1975, 

A!ml,TION LENGTil 

Sections 4 and S of new location Rte. 637 
from Int. Rte.  24 to 0.07 M, s. Rt. 803. 0.10 Mi. 

fi I 5 C.. {/:' /le, )

I I (Pr- 6 3 1 )  

Copies: 
Mr. A. s. Mattox
Mr. J.P. Mills, Jr. 
Mr. A. s. Brown 
Mr. J. F. Turner 
Mr. L. H. Dawson, Jr. 

J •• Harwood, Deputy Commissioner 
iid Chief Engineer (fol r, :::1) 

·· ' 

Mr. Frank Norris - Lebanon 

I • • 

.' (; /.· .; ,. ' i . ' )



,·'  I, l/ 1'/ t •,: / ,  ·, 
. , 

:  / , - '  • ' ; - . . , (1
. ,
,► , 

I / / \ ) 

\ I I 
\ ( 

' J C ( 

, • t ' . '

/ ( ' ···7
( / I • I 

I 

/ 

J i 

-o,o �f(J?I, 803) 

• t-' • o ':J- {_ Rl 6 3 ' 7  ) 

·· 1 ) I I 
I I I / I I I , , I ' I ( I \ ' \  

/ 

o r / o .  '/'7.-"'/ l(;/,e ,.Z-j/ / 4 .  d<. ,, 
  ,·-. e- , ' / ,t!:;? , ·,-,; 

...J 
v 

\JI I 

I 

7 /'/,. -C" / ( / ,  

- 0 , 0
I-( awl I e d
s f/J ft r,d t:.. It 

,.,a 
• ' ,' L ,• d / , , /'.   ,:_, • 'j' / 

' _.., '. 



• 715�...,........... I ·  

.-,   

:..ou;•I   J  . - : \._ -· -

  -- . ---,_:,
'6 '  -_.. -., .. ,;.;.r•·, 

,,. ' 

f .. ((fn)100 • 

I,·,, 

.,... 
•.•• .I 

I 

I , '· 
I 

) r \ / ' - -  ·  . .  

o,c 

\ 

/'• 

j 

,.·J-... 
-- / '   ----·-- -···--->,=:CT: :.--:,·' -:· 

o,o;,  /:•·,·, 

-i  c  --< :--::.,··. ,'·, --:;_--' -  ·

r- / , I I r - / I I - - ·  , '  

/ 

/ , 

C  .:J/7. 

'-. .- I 

,• 
)' , , ' - .. ' - ·  

\ _ .  

/ , ' )  '_.   --'--

/ 
/ / 

/ 
/i..:.' 

( - r - \/! I 
I 

I 

,,. I 
(: ... , ...._; ', 

(-r;' //4 :,,,,y A: ., 1 -· 

t 

. .7  - ;.> ,:,,'. 



Page 1 of 10 
 

GOVERNOR’S AGRICULTURE & FORESTRY INDUSTRIES DEVELOPMENT 
FUND 

 
PERFORMANCE AGREEMENT 

 
 This PERFORMANCE AGREEMENT (the “Agreement”) made and entered this ____ 
day of __________, 20__, by and among the COUNTY of RUSSELL, VIRGINIA (the “Locality”) 
a political subdivision of the Commonwealth of Virginia (the “Commonwealth”), and RAMBLER 
STAVES, LLC dba RAMBLER WOOD PRODUCTS (the “Company”), a limited liability 
company authorized to transact business in the Commonwealth, and the INDUSTRIAL 
DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY OF RUSSELL COUNTY (the “Authority”), a political 
subdivision of the Commonwealth.   
 

WITNESSETH: 
 
 WHEREAS, the Locality has been awarded a grant of and expects to receive $300,000 from 
the Governor’s Agriculture & Forestry Industries Development Fund (an “AFID Grant”) through 
the Virginia Department of Agriculture and Consumer Services (“VDACS”) for the purpose of 
inducing the Company to purchase and improve an agriculture and/or forestry processing/value-
added facility using Virginia-grown products in the Locality (the “Facility”), thereby making a 
significant Capital Investment, as hereinafter defined, creating a significant number of New Jobs, as 
hereinafter defined; and purchasing a significant amount of Virginia-grown agricultural and forestal 
products, as hereinafter defined. 
 
 WHEREAS, the Locality is willing to provide the funds to the Authority with the expectation 
that the Authority will provide the funds to or for the use of the Company, provided that the Company 
promises to meet certain criteria relating to Capital Investment, New Jobs, and purchase of Virginia-
grown agricultural and forestal products;  
 
 WHEREAS, the Locality, the Authority and the Company desire to set forth their 
understanding and agreement as to the payout of the AFID Grant, the use of the AFID Grant 
proceeds, the obligations of the Company regarding Capital Investment, New Job creation, purchase 
of Virginia-grown agricultural and forestal products, and the repayment by the Company of all or part 
of the AFID Grant under certain circumstances;  
 
 WHEREAS, the purchase and operation of the Facility will entail a capital expenditure of 
approximately $7,565,000, of which approximately $5,550,000 will be invested in machinery and 
equipment, approximately $1,700,000 will be invested to improve the site and building, and 
approximately $315,000 will be invested in tangible personal property;  
 

WHEREAS, the purchase and operation of the Facility will further entail the creation of 73 
New Jobs at the Facility;  

 
 WHEREAS, the purchase and operation of the Facility will further lead to the purchase of 
Virginia-grown agricultural and forestal products in the following amount: $22,298,646 or 13,116,850 
board feet over the performance period (see Appendix A for details); and 
 



Page 2 of 10 
 

WHEREAS, the stimulation of the additional tax revenue and economic activity to be 
generated by the Capital Investment, New Jobs, and purchase of Virginia-grown agricultural and 
forestal products constitutes a valid public purpose for the expenditure of public funds and is the 
animating purpose for the AFID Grant: 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing, the mutual benefits, promises and 
undertakings of the parties to this Agreement, and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt 
and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the parties covenant and agree as follows. 
 
Section 1.   Definitions. 
 

For the purposes of this Agreement, the following terms shall have the following definitions: 
 
“Capital Investment” means a capital expenditure by the Company in taxable real property, 

taxable tangible personal property, or both, at the Facility excluding the purchase of land or existing 
real property improvements.  The total capital expenditure of $7,565,000 is referred to in this 
Agreement as the “Capital Investment.” Only the capital expenditures allocated to the portion of the 
real property to be leased by the Company will count as “Capital Investment.”  The purchase or lease 
of furniture, fixtures, machinery and equipment, including under an operating lease, and expected 
building up-fit and tenant improvements by or on behalf of the Company will qualify as Capital 
Investment. 

 
“Grant Award Date” means January 15, 2021.  This is the date from which progress towards 

the achievement of all Targets begins.  Progress towards achievement of Targets before this date will 
not be counted, unless such progress is approved in writing by VDACS, in consultation with the 
Locality and Authority. 

 
“Maintain” means that the New Jobs created pursuant to the AFID Grant will continue 

without interruption from the date of creation through the Performance Date.  Positions for the New 
Jobs will be treated as Maintained during periods in which such positions are not filled due to 
temporary reductions in the Company’s employment levels in connection with recruitment for open 
positions or strikes and other work stoppages.            

 
“New Job” means new permanent full-time employment of an indefinite duration at the 

Facility for which the standard fringe benefits are paid by the Company for the employee, and for 
which the Company pays an average annual wage of at least $41,623.  Each New Job must require a 
minimum of either (i) 35 hours of an employee’s time per week for the entire normal year of the 
Company’s operations, which “normal year” must consist of at least 48 weeks, or (ii) 1,680 hours per 
year.  Seasonal or temporary positions, positions created when a job function is shifted from an 
existing location in the Commonwealth, and positions with construction contractors, vendors, 
suppliers and similar multiplier or spin-off jobs shall not qualify as New Jobs.  

 
“Performance Date” means March 31, 2024.  If the Locality, in consultation with the Authority 

and the Secretary of Agriculture and Forestry, deems that good faith and reasonable efforts have been 
made and are being made by the Company to achieve the Targets, the Locality may agree to extend 
the Performance Date by up to 15 months.  If the Performance Date is extended, the Locality shall 
send written notice of the extension to the Authority, the Company and the Secretary of Agriculture 



Page 3 of 10 
 

and Forestry and the date to which the Performance Date has been extended shall be the 
“Performance Date” for the purposes of this Agreement.  

 
“Targets” means the Company’s obligations to make Capital Investments at the Facility of at 

least $7,565,000, to create and Maintain at least 73 New Jobs at the Facility, and to purchase at least 
$22,298,646 of Virginia-grown agricultural and forestal products as defined in Appendix A, all as of 
the Performance Date.  

 
“Virginia Code” means the Code of Virginia of 1950, as amended.     

 
Section 2.   Targets. 
 

The Company will develop and operate the Facility in the Locality, make a Capital Investment 
of at least $7,565,000, create and Maintain at least 73 New Jobs, and purchase $22,298,646 or 
13,116,850 board feet of Virginia-grown agricultural and forestal products (see Appendix A), at the 
Facility, all as of the Performance Date. If the dollar amount of new purchases of Virginia-grown 
agricultural and forestal products is not met, the Company can still achieve the purchase target by 
demonstrating they substantively achieved the same volume of Virginia-grown agricultural and forestal 
products they proposed in Appendix A. 

 
The average annual wage of the New Jobs will be at least $41,623. 
 
The average prevailing wage in the locality in 2021 is $40,421. 
 

Section 3. Disbursement of AFID Grant. 
 

By execution and delivery of this Agreement, the Locality requests that the AFID Grant shall 
retain with VDACS until disbursed.  The disbursement of the AFID Grant proceeds to the Company 
via the Locality and Authority will serve as an inducement to the Company to achieve the Targets.  
The AFID Grant process shall be retained by VDACS and shall be disbursed as follows: 

 
(a) Achievement of Targets.  The full $300,000 AFID Grant Award shall be 
disbursed in full following submission of an annual report, as required in Section 5 of 
this Performance Agreement, that demonstrates to the satisfaction of the Locality, the 
Authority, and VDACS that it has made a Capital Investments of at least $7,565,000, 
created and Maintained at least 73 New Jobs with an average annual wage of $41,623, 
and purchased $22,298,646 or 13,116,850 board feet of agricultural and forestal 
products (per Appendix A).  
 

Within 30 days of the submission of sufficient documentation to confirm 
completion of Targets and submission of a valid request for payment of AFID Grant 
funds, VDACS shall disburse AFID Grant proceeds to the Locality.  Within 30 days of 
receipt of AFID Grant proceeds, the Locality will disburse the AFID Grant proceeds 
to the Authority.  Within 30 days of its receipt of such AFID Grant proceeds, the 
Authority will disburse such AFID Grant proceeds to the Company.    

 



Page 4 of 10 
 

(b) Substantial Performance.  If by the Performance Date, as verified by the 
Locality and VDACS, the Company has achieved at least ninety percent (90%) of the 
Targets, the company is eligible for the full $300,000 AFID Grant Award.     
 

Within 30 days of the submission of sufficient documentation to confirm 
Substantial Performance and submission of a valid request for payment of AFID Grant 
funds, VDACS shall disburse AFID Grant proceeds to the Locality.  Within 30 days of 
receipt of AFID Grant proceeds, the Locality will disburse the AFID Grant proceeds 
to the Authority.  Within 30 days of its receipt of such AFID Grant proceeds, the 
Authority will disburse such AFID Grant proceeds to the Company.   
 
(c)   Partial Performance.  If by the Performance Date, the Company has failed to 
meet the Targets, the Company may still be eligible for a partial payment of the AFID 
Award.  For purposes of determining partial payment, the AFID Grant is to be 
allocated as $100,000 (33%) for the Company’s Capital Investment Target, $100,000 
(33%) for its New Jobs Target, and $100,000 (33%) for its purchase of Virginia-grown 
agricultural and forestal products.  If the Company has not met at least ninety percent 
(90%) of each of the three of its Targets at the Performance Date, the Company shall 
no longer be eligible for that part of the AFID Grant that is proportional to the Target 
or Targets for which there is a shortfall.  For example, if at the Performance Date, the 
Capital Investment is only $5,673,750, only 55 New Jobs have been created and 
Maintained, and only $16,723,985 or 9,837,638 board feet of Virginia-grown 
agricultural and forestal products have been purchased, the Company shall only be 
eligible for seventy-five percent (75%) of the moneys allocated to the Capital 
Investment Target ($75,000), seventy-five percent (75%) of the moneys allocated to the 
New Jobs  Target ($75,000), and seventy-five percent (75%) of the moneys allocated to 
the purchase of Virginia-grown agricultural and forestal products Target ($75,000).   
 

Within 30 days of the submission of sufficient documentation to confirm 
Partial Performance and submission of a valid request for payment of AFID Grant 
funds, VDACS shall disburse the partial AFID Grant proceeds to the Locality.  Within 
30 days of receipt of AFID Grant proceeds, the Locality will disburse the AFID Grant 
proceeds to the Authority.  Within 30 days of its receipt of such AFID Grant proceeds, 
the Authority will disburse such AFID Grant proceeds to the Company.   

  
(d) Determination of Inability to Comply:  If the Locality or the Secretary of Agriculture 
and Forestry (the “Secretary”) determines at any time before the Performance Date (a 
“Determination Date”) that the Company is unlikely to meet and Maintain at least fifty 
percent (50%) of its Targets by and through the Performance Date (i.e., by making a 
Capital Investment of at least $3,782,500 in the Facility, to creating and Maintaining at 
least 37 New Jobs  at the Facility, or purchasing at least $11,149,323 or  655,843 board 
feet of Virginia-grown agricultural and forestal products by the Performance Date), and 
if the Locality or the Secretary shall have promptly notified the Company of such 
determination, eligibility for payment of AFID Grant Funds is forfeited and  all AFID 
Grant Funds disbursed to the Company must be repaid by the Company to the 
Authority.   Such a determination by the Locality or the Secretary will be based on such 
circumstances as a filing by or on behalf of the Company under Chapter 7 of the U.S. 
Bankruptcy Code, the liquidation of the Company, an abandonment of the Facility by 



Page 5 of 10 
 

the Company or other similar significant event that demonstrates the Company will be 
unable or is unwilling to satisfy the Targets for the AFID Grant.   
 
(e)  Use of the AFID Grant Proceeds:  The Company will use the AFID Grant proceeds 
to make building improvements, as permitted by Section 3.2-304(C) of the Virginia 
Code. 
 

Section 4. State and Local Government Incentives. 
 

See Appendix B for definition of “break-even point.”  With regard to the Facility, the 
Commonwealth expects to provide incentives in the following amounts: 

 
Category of Incentive: Total Amount 
AFID Grant $300,000 
Virginia Jobs Investment Program (“VJIP”) (Estimated) $58,400 

 
The Locality expects to provide the following incentives, as matching grants or otherwise, for 

the Facility: 
 

Category of Incentive: Total Amount 
Russell County - Building lease-purchase agreement $1,500,000 
  

 The Locality has elected to enter into a building lease-purchase agreement with the Company in 
the amount of $1,500,000 which lease period will end ______, 2031. 
 

The proceeds of the AFID Grant shall be used for the purposes described in Section 3.  The 
VJIP grant proceeds shall be used by the Company to pay or reimburse itself for recruitment and 
training costs. The proceeds of the Locality’s lease-purchase agreement may be used by the Company 
to take ownership of the building.  

 
Other Incentives:  This Agreement relates solely to the AFID Grant.  The qualification for, and 

payment of all State-Level and Locality-Level Incentives, except for the AFID Grant, will be governed 
by separate arrangements between the Company and the entities offering the other incentives. 
 
Section 5. Company Reporting.   
 

The Company shall provide, at the Company’s expense, detailed verification reasonably 
satisfactory to the Locality, the Authority and VDACS of the Company’s progress on the Targets.  
Such progress reports will be provided annually, starting April 30, 2022, and at such other times as the 
Locality, the Authority or VDACS may reasonably require.  The first progress report will cover the 
period from January 7, 2021, to March 31, 2022, the second progress report will cover the period from 
April 1, 2022, to March 31, 2023, and the third and final progress report will cover the period from 
April 1, 2023, to March 31, 2024.   

 
With each such progress report, the Company shall report to VDACS the amount paid by the 

Company in the prior calendar year in Virginia corporate income tax.  The Company hereby authorizes 
the Commissioner of the Revenue, the Treasurer and the Director of Finance for the Locality to 
release to the Authority and the Locality the Company’s confidential tax information and data so that 



Page 6 of 10 
 

the Authority may verify the payments made. VDACS has represented to the Company that it 
considers such information to be confidential proprietary information that is exempt from public 
disclosure under the Virginia Freedom of Information Act and that such information will be used by 
VDACS solely in calculating aggregate return on invested capital analyses for purposes of gauging the 
overall effectiveness of economic development incentives. 

 
With each progress report, the Company shall report to VDACS the number of New Jobs 

created and Maintained during the reporting period.  The information provided will be verified by 
VDACS with the Virginia Employment Commission. If requested by VDACS, the Company shall 
provide to VDACS copies of the Company’s quarterly filings with the Virginia Employment 
Commission covering the period from the date of this Agreement through the Performance Date.  In 
accordance with the Virginia Code Section 60.2-114, VDACS is entitled to receive the Company’s 
employment level and wage from the Virginia Employment Commission. 
 

With each progress report, the Company shall also report to VDACS the amount purchased 
and the purchase price paid by the Company, or the fair market value of the Virginia-Grown 
Agricultural or Forestal Products utilized, through the prior year. 
 

The Locality and Company agree to retain all books, records, data and other documents 
relative to this agreement for a period of three (3) years after the end of this agreement, or until audited 
by the Commonwealth of Virginia, whichever is sooner.  VDACS and its authorized agents, and/or 
state auditors (both the Auditor of Public Accounts and/or VDACS Internal Auditor) shall have full 
access to and the right to examine any of said materials and records relating to this agreement during 
this period. 
 
Section 6. Notices. 
 

Any notices required or permitted under this Agreement shall be given in writing, and shall be 
deemed to be received upon receipt or refusal after mailing of the same in the United States Mail by 
certified mail, postage fully pre-paid or by overnight courier (refusal shall mean return of certified mail 
or overnight courier package not accepted by the addressee): 
 
if to the Company, to:     with a copy to: 
 
     
     
     
     
Attention:      

     
     
     
     
Attention:      

 
if to the Locality, to:     with a copy to: 
 
     
     
     
     
Attention:      

     
     
     
     
Attention:      

 



Page 7 of 10 
 

if to the Authority, to:     with a copy to: 
 
     
     
     
     
Attention:      

     
     
     
     
Attention:      

 
if to VDACS, to:     with a copy to: 
 
Secretary of Agriculture and Forestry 
Office of Governor  
Commonwealth of Virginia 
1111 East Broad Street 
Richmond, Virginia  23219 
Attention: AFID 

Stephen Versen 
Manager, Office of Agriculture and Forestry 
Development 
Va  Dept. of Agriculture & Consumer Services 
102 Governor St. 
Richmond, Virginia  23219 
Attention:  AFID 

 
Section 7. Miscellaneous. 
 
 (a) Entire Agreement; Amendments:  This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement among 
the parties hereto as to the AFID Grant and may not be amended or modified, except in writing, 
signed by each of the parties hereto.  This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit 
of the parties hereto and their respective successors and assigns.  The Company may not assign its 
rights and obligations under this Agreement without the prior written consent of the Locality, the 
Authority and the Secretary of Agriculture and Forestry.   
 
 (b) Governing Law; Venue:  This Agreement is made, and is intended to be performed, in 
the Commonwealth and shall be construed and enforced by the laws of the Commonwealth.  
Jurisdiction and venue for any litigation arising out of or involving this Agreement shall lie in the 
Circuit Court of the Locality and such litigation shall be brought only in such court. 
 
 (c) Counterparts:  This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, each of 
which shall be an original, and all of which together shall be one and the same instrument. 
 
 (d) Severability:  If any provision of this Agreement is determined to be unenforceable, 
invalid or illegal, then the enforceability, validity and legality of the remaining provisions will not in 
any way be affected or impaired, and such provision will be deemed to be restated to reflect the original 
intentions of the parties as nearly as possible in accordance with applicable law.   

 
[THE REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK] 

  



Page 8 of 10 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Performance Agreement 
as of the date first written above. 
 
       
 

COUNTY OF RUSSELL, VIRGINIA 
 
 
 
By        
     Name:        
     Title:          
Date: _______________________________ 
 
 
 
INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT 
AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF 
RUSSELL, VIRGINIA 
 
 
 
By        
     Name:        
     Title:          
Date: _______________________________ 
 
 
 
RAMBLER STAVES, LLC dba 
RAMBLER WOOD PRODUCTS 
 
By        
     Name:        
     Title:          
Date: _______________________________ 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 9 of 10 
 

APPENDIX A 
 
Purchases of Virginia-grown Products: 
 
VIRGINIA AGRICULTURE PURCHASE PROJECTIONS 

PROJECTED AGRICULTURE PURCHASES 

  
  

Year 1             
$ Value 

Year 1      
Volume 

(BF) 

Year 2            
$ Value 

Year 2 
Volume 

(BF) 

Year 3         
$ Value 

Year 3 
Volume 

(BF) 

Net New     
$ Value 

Net New 
Volume 

(BF) 
Total Ag Products 
Purchase $8,044,244 4,731,908 $16,088,489 9,463,817 $16,410,259 9,653,094 $40,452,992 23,848,819 

Timber (BF) $8,044,244 4,731,908 $16,088,489 9,463,817 $16,410,259 9,653,094 $40,452,992 23,848,819 

Total Virginia Ag 
Products Purchase $4,424,334 2,602,550 $8,848,669 5,205,099 $9,025,642 5,309,201 $22,298,646 13,116,850 

Timber (BF) $4,424,334 2,602,550 $8,848,669 5,205,099 $9,025,642 5,309,201 $22,298,646 13,116,850 

Percentage Virginia-
grown 55% 55% 55% 55% 55% 55% 55% 55% 

*Timber purchases include full tracts with a variety of species including White Oak, Red Oak, other Virginia hardwoods, 
pulpwood, etc. 
  



Page 10 of 10 
 

APPENDIX B 
 
Break-Even Point Definition: 
 
VDACS has estimated that the Commonwealth will reach its “break-even point” by the Performance 
Date.  The break-even point compares new revenues realized as a result of the Capital Investment and 
New Jobs at the Facility with the Commonwealth’s expenditures on incentives, including but not 
limited to the AFID Grant. 
 



 

S U P R E M E  C O U R T  O F  V I R G I N I A  

 
O F F I C E  O F  T H E  E X E C U T I V E  S E C R E T A R Y  

1 0 0  N O R T H  N I N T H  S T R E E T  
R I C H M O N D ,  V I R G I N I A  2 3 2 1 9 - 2 3 3 4  

( 8 0 4 )  7 8 6 - 6 4 5 5  

 

 
          
JUDICIAL INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY 
     Michael J. Riggs, Sr., Director 

JUDICIAL PLANNING 
     Cyril W. Miller, Jr., Director 

JUDICIAL SERVICES 
  Paul F. DeLosh, Director 
 

LEGAL RESEARCH 
  Steven L. Dalle Mura, Director 
 

LEGISLATIVE & PUBLIC RELATIONS 
  Kristi S. Wright, Director 
 

MAGISTRATE SERVICES 
  Jonathan E. Green, Director 

      

 

 
EXECUTIVE SECRETARY 
     Karl R. Hade 

Assistant Executive Secretary & 
 Legal Counsel 

     Edward M. Macon 

COURT IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM 
      Sandra L. Karison, Director 

EDUCATIONAL SERVICES 
      CAROLINE E. KIRKPATRICK, DIRECTOR 
 
FISCAL SERVICES 
     BARRY M. WENZIG, DIRECTOR 
 
HUMAN RESOURCES 
      RENÉE FLEMING MILLS, DIRECTOR 

 
 

 
 

  
 
 
 
 
 

August 3, 2021 
 
 
 
 

Ms. Missy Carter 
Russell County Drug Court Coordinator 
89 E. Main Street, Suite B 
P. O. Box 417 
Lebanon, VA  24266 
 
Supreme Court of Virginia Drug Treatment Court Docket Grant, 
Title:  Russell County Adult Drug Treatment Court 

 
Dear Ms. Carter: 
 
 I am pleased to advise you that your grant for the above-referenced grant program 
has been approved for $90,000 in State funds for fiscal year 2022.  Please note the special 
condition prior to accepting this award. 
 

Enclosed you will find a Statement of Grant Award and a Statement of Grant 
Award Special Conditions.  To indicate your acceptance of the award and conditions, 
please sign the award acceptance and return it to Courtney Stewart, Specialty Dockets 
Grants Management Analyst, at the Office of the Executive Secretary (OES).  Please 
review the conditions carefully as they require action on your part before we will 
disburse grant funds.  Prior to the OES disbursing of funds, the Subrecipient must agree 
to comply with the following and the attached special conditions: 

 
a. Submit the quarterly grant reports by their due date to the Statewide Drug 

Treatment Court Coordinator. 
b. Maintain accurate & current data in the new web-based drug treatment 

court database beginning July 1, 2012. 
c. Submit a copy of any final federal grant report(s) and/or quarterly reports 

of any drug court Federal grant funds awarded. 
 

When we receive documentation showing that you have complied with the 
conditions, you will be eligible to request funds awarded under this grant.  A REQUEST 
FOR FUNDS form is also included with this letter and should be used for this purpose.  
 



Russell County Adult Award Letter  
August 3, 2021 
Page Two 

 
You may request funds at the same time you submit the documentation of 

compliance with the grant conditions or at any time thereafter.  However, we cannot 
process your request until we have received and approved all required information. 
 

 We appreciate your interest in this grant program and will be happy to assist you 
in any way we can to assure your project’s success.  If you have any questions, please 
call Courtney Stewart at 804-356-1064. 

 
   Yours very truly, 

                                          Paul F. DeLosh 

   
PFD/ces 
Enclosures 
 
cc:     Mr. Lonzo Lester, Russell County Administrator 
          Ms. Alisha McGlothin, Russell County Treasurer 
 Karl R. Hade, Executive Secretary 
 Anna Powers, Drug Treatment Court Coordinator 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Supreme Court of Virginia  
Office of the Executive Secretary 

100 North Ninth Street Richmond, VA  23219 
 

Statement of Grant Award/Acceptance 
 
Subrecipient-- Date:   August 3, 2021  
Russell County Drug Court 
Grant Period--   
From:    7/1/2021 Through:    6/30/2022  
    

Project Director Project Administrator Finance Officer 
Missy R. Carter 
Drug Court Coordinator 
135 Highland Drive 
P.O. Box 417 
Lebanon, Virginia 24266 

Lonzo Lester 
Russell County Administrator 
137 Highland Drive 
P.O. Box 1208 
Lebanon, Virginia 24266 

Alisha McGlothlin 
Russell County Treasurer   
137 Highland Drive 
P.O. Box 121 
Lebanon, Virginia 24266 

Phone No:    (276) 889-8158 
Email:  
missy.carter@russellcountyva.us 
 

Phone No:  (276) 889-8000   
Email:  
lonzolester@russellcountyva.us    
 

Phone No:    (276) 889-8028 
Email:  
rctreas@bvunet.net 
       

      GRANT AWARD BUDGET 
    Program Funds 

Budget Categories TOTALS 
 
A.  Personnel 

     $ 51,750 

 
B.  Consultants 

     $ 25,400 

 
C.  Travel 

     $        -0- 

 
D.  Equipment 

     $       -0- 

 
E.  Indirect Expenses 

     $       -0- 

 
F.  Supplies & Other Expenses 

     $  8,850 

 
TOTALS 

     $ 90,000.00 

   
This grant is subject to all rules, regulations, and criteria included in the grant application and the special 
conditions attached thereto. 
   

 
   Paul F. DeLosh, Director of Judicial Services 
     
The undersigned, having received the Statement of Grant Award/Acceptance and the Conditions attached thereto, 
does hereby accept this grant and agree to the conditions pertaining thereto, this 3rd day of August 2021. 
   

Signature: 
 

  Title:  

 

mailto:missy.carter@russellcountyva.us
mailto:missy.carter@russellcountyva.us
mailto:lonzolester@russellcountyva.us
mailto:rctreas@bvunet.net


STATEMENT OF GRANT AWARD SPECIAL CONDITIONS 
Supreme Court of Virginia 

Office of the Executive Secretary 
Judicial Services Department 

100 North Ninth Street 
Richmond, Virginia   23219 

 
 For the Supreme Court of Virginia Drug Treatment Court Grant to Localities 
 
 Subrecipient:   Russell County 

 
Title:   Russell County Adult Drug Court Date:  August 3, 2021 
 
 
The following conditions are attached to and made a part of this grant award: 
 
1. By signing the Statement of Grant Award/Acceptance, the grant recipient agrees: 
 

• to use the grant funds to carry out the activities described in the grant application, as modified 
by the terms and conditions attached to this award or by subsequent amendments approved by 
the OES; 

• to adhere to the approved budget contained in this award and amendments made to it in accord 
with these terms and conditions;  

• and to comply with all terms, conditions and assurances either attached to this award or 
submitted with the grant application. 

 
2. The subrecipient agrees to submit such reports as requested by the OES on forms provided by the OES.  

Funds from this grant will not be disbursed, if any of the required Financial or Progress reports are 
overdue by more than 30 days unless you can show good cause for missing the reporting deadline. 

 
3. Grant funds, including local match, may be expended and/or obligated during the grant period.  All 

legal obligations must be liquidated no later than 60 days after the end of the grant period.  The grant 
recipient agrees to supply a final grant financial report and return all received and unexpended grant 
funds (exclusive of local match) to the OES within 60 days after the end of the grant liquidation 
period. 

 
4. By accepting this grant, the recipient assures that funds made available through it will not be used to 

replace state or local funds that would, in the absence of this grant, be made available for the same 
purposes. 

 
5. Subrecipient may follow their own established travel rates if they have an established travel policy.  If 

a subgrantee does not have an established policy, then they must adhere to state travel policy.  The 
state allows reimbursement for actual reasonable expenses.  The state allows $0.58 per mile for 
mileage.  Transportation costs for air and rail must be at coach rates. 

 
6. Within 60 days of the starting date of the grant, the subgrantee must initiate the project funded.  If not, 

the subgrantee must report to the OES, by letter, the steps taken to initiate the project, the reasons for 
the delay, and the expected starting date.  If the project is not operational within 90 days of the start 
date, the subgrantee must obtain approval in writing from the OES for a new implementation date or 
the OES may cancel and terminate the project and redistribute the funds. 

 
 
 



7. No amendment to the approved budget may be made without the prior written approval of OES.  
No more than two (2) budget amendments will be permitted during the grant period.  Budget 
amendments must be requested using the enclosed budget amendment request form 
accompanied with a narrative.  No budget amendments will be allowed after Friday April 15, 
2022.  

 
8. The subrecipient agrees to forward a copy to the OES of the scheduled audit of this grant award. 
 
9. All purchases for goods and services must comply with the Virginia Public Procurement Act.  

Procurement transactions, whether negotiated or advertised and without regard to dollar value, shall be 
conducted in a manner to provide maximum open and free competition.  An exemption to this 
regulation requires the prior approval of the OES and is only given in unusual circumstances.  Any 
request for exemption must be submitted in writing to the OES.  Permission to make sole source 
procurements must be obtained from the OES in advance. 

 
 
10. Acceptance of this grant award by the local government applicant constitutes its agreement that it 

assumes full responsibility for the management of all aspects of the grant and the activities funded by 
the grant, including assuring proper fiscal management of and accounting for grant funds; assuring that 
personnel paid with grant funds are hired, supervised and evaluated in accord with the local 
government’s established employment and personnel policies; and assuring that all terms, conditions 
and assurances—those submitted with the grant application, and those issued with this award—are 
complied with. 

 
11. Any delegation of responsibility for carrying out grant-funded activities to an office or department not 

a part of the local government must be pursuant to a written memorandum of understanding by which 
the implementing office or department agrees to comply with all applicable grant terms, conditions and 
assurances.  Any such delegation notwithstanding, the applicant acknowledges by its acceptance of the 
award its ultimate responsibility for compliance with all terms, conditions and assurances of the grant 
award. 

 
12. PROJECT INCOME:  Any funds generated as a direct result of the OES grant funded projects are 

deemed project income.  Project income must be reported on forms provided by the OES.  The 
following are examples of project income:  Service fees; Client fees; Drug test fees; Usage or Rental 
fees; sales of materials; income received from sale of seized and forfeited assets (cash, personal or real 
property included). 

 
13. Prior to the OES disbursing funds, the Subgrantee must comply with the following special 

conditions: 
 
 

Law enforcement officers can be hired at their regular rate, not off-duty rate for active law 
enforcement.  Consider contracting with a part-time retired law enforcement officer for this 
position or other who will perform these duties as regular rate.  The approved surveillance 
officer rate is $15.75. 
 
Please provide additional information regarding the process group facilitator position.   

 



 

PUBLIC NOTICE 
 

REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS (RFQ)  
 

Professional Consulting Services  
 

 
The County of Russell is currently seeking professional services from qualified and 
experienced firms/consultants to provide environmental, engineering, and planning 
services to support the County’s Three Rivers Destination Center Brownfields 
Assessment Project. To be considered for selection, consultants should have 
documented experience in providing brownfields-related consulting services associated 
with projects funded by EPA, DEQ, and other grants.   
 
Firms meeting the requirements of this RFQ are invited to submit their proposal.  Request 
for Qualifications (RFQ) are available on the County’s Website Bid Postings • Russell 
County, VA • CivicEngage (russellcountyva.us) or email lonzo.lester@russellcountyva.us 
to request the RFQ.   
 
Proposals are due no later than 3:00 p.m., Friday, September 10, 2021.  Any proposals 
received after this deadline will be returned to the offeror unopened. The County reserves 
the right to reject any and all proposals.   
 
Scope of Service: 
  

• Site Characterization and Assessment Activities: Conduct Phase II 
Environmental Site Assessment (ESA) for the Three Rivers Destination Center 
Project.  All documents shall be required to be prepared in accordance with the 
applicable federal, state, and industry standards.  

• Redevelopment Planning and Conceptual Drawings:  Complete site-specific 
cleanup and redevelopment planning documents, including site remediation work 
plans and conceptual redevelopment site plans.  

• Other Brownfield-Related Duties: Conducting and completing other duties that 
may be required for a successful program but that have not been anticipated in 
this document. 
 

Disadvantaged Business Enterprises (small or minority and/or women owned firms) are 
encouraged to submit proposals. MBE/WBE firms are encouraged to submit proposals. 
 
The County is an equal opportunity/affirmative action employer and will not discriminate 
based on race, creed, color, national origin, age, or handicap.  
 
 

                                                                 BY ORDER OF THE 
                                                                RUSSELL COUNTY 

                                                                                          BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

https://www.russellcountyva.us/Bids.aspx
https://www.russellcountyva.us/Bids.aspx
mailto:lonzo.lester@russellcountyva.us


1 
 

 
 

COUNTY OF RUSSELL, VIRGINIA 
 

 
 
 
 

Request for Qualifications (RFQ) 
 Professional Consulting Services 

 
Three Rivers Destination Center  

Brownfields Assessment Grant Project 
 
 

Issue Date: August 30, 2021 
Due Date: September 10, 2021 

 
 
 

COUNTY OF RUSSELL 
137 HIGHLAND DRIVE 
LEBANON, VA 24266 

276-889-8011 
 

 
 
 
 
 



2 
 

 
Statement of Qualifications 

Professional Consulting Services 
Three River Destination Center  

Brownfields Assessment Grant Project 
County of Russell, VA 

 
Introduction: 
  
The County of Russell is currently seeking professional services from qualified and experienced 
firms/consultants to provide environmental, engineering, and planning services to support the 
County’s Three Rivers Destination Center Brownfields Assessment Project. In order to be 
considered for selection, consultants should have documented experience in providing 
brownfields-related consulting services associated with projects funded by EPA, DEQ, and other 
grants.   
 
Specifically, the County has received funding for a Virginia Brownfields Assessment Fund 
(VBAF) project to perform environmental assessments on a specific project in the County.   
 
Scope of Service: 
  
Activities of the consultant shall include, but not necessarily be limited to, the following:  
 
Environmental Assessment Project:  
 

• Site Characterization and Assessment Activities: Conduct Phase II Environmental Site 
Assessment (ESA) for the Three Rivers Destination Center Project.  All documents shall 
be required to be prepared in accordance with the applicable federal, state, and industry 
standards.  
 

• Redevelopment Planning and Conceptual Drawings:  Complete site-specific cleanup and 
redevelopment planning documents, including site remediation work plans and conceptual 
redevelopment site plans.  
 

• Other Brownfield-Related Duties: Conducting and completing other duties that may be 
required for a successful program but that have not been anticipated in this document.  

 
Response Format: 
 
Submit one (1) original and one (1) electronic copy of the Statement of Qualifications (SOQ). The 
submittal shall be no longer than 12 pages (including organizational chart) and shall include the 
information outlined below. To ensure fair and equitable evaluation, proposals should be organized 
into the following separate sections: 
  

• Statement of Interest 
The County intends to select one qualified consultant to perform the work.   

 
 



3 
 

• Experience and Capacity  
The SOQ shall include a description of the firm’s experience and capacity in providing 
the services as described herein;  
 

o Brownfields grant application writing and grant administration; 

o Brownfields project experience (EPA, DEQ, and private Brownfields experience);  

o Description of the firm's organizational structure and the names and experience of 
key individuals that would be assigned to this project, including professional 
registrations, site investigations, and experience working with the EPA and 
VDEQ; and, 

o Experience in site reuse planning/assessments and successful projects. 

• Proposed Technical Approach and Understanding of Scope of Work  
The SOQ shall include a description of the approach the firm will take to complete the 
scope of work described herein. Include a description of the specific tasks that will be 
provided by your firm and the timing of how your firm proposes to undertake the work.  
Also, please address the role and responsibilities of County staff in this project, and 
whether there would be any out-of-pocket expenses for the County.  

• References  
The SOQ shall include at least three (3) references for similar services/projects that have 
been provided by your firm and the dates of service. Please include the reference name, 
company, email address and phone number. Also include a description of the services and 
key personnel that were involved in the project.  
 

• Conflict of Interest 
Please disclose any potential conflicts of interest. 

 
Selection Criteria  

Responses will be evaluated on the following criteria:  
o Experience and ability to complete the work  - 35 points 
o Demonstrated brownfields experience including successful grant writing and 

administration - 20 points 
o Technical approach and understanding of the scope of work - 20 points 
o Quality of performance on Brownfields projects - 15 points  
o Billing rates – 10 points  

 
All SOQ’s must be received by 3:00 pm on September 10, 2021. Responses must be sealed and 
clearly marked on the outside mailing envelope – “Three Rivers Destination Center Brownfields 
Assessment Project”. Please mail or deliver to:  County Administrator Office, 137 Highland Drive, 
P.O. Box 1208, Lebanon, VA. 24266 
 
 
Prior to award, an oral presentation to the County may be requested. The request for an oral 
presentation shall in no way constitute acceptance or imply that an agreement is pending. The 
County reserves the right to award this opportunity based on the initial SOQ response without oral 
presentations.  



4 
 

 
Award of Contract  
In accord with the Code of Virginia §2.2-4302.2, the County shall engage in individual discussions 
with two or more firms deemed fully qualified, responsible, and suitable, based on the initial 
responses and with emphasis on professional competence to provide the required services. At the 
conclusion of these discussions, based on the evaluation factors published in the request for 
qualifications, the County shall select in the order of preference two or more firms whose 
professional qualifications and proposed services are deemed most meritorious.  
 
Negotiations shall then be conducted, beginning with the offerors ranked first. If a contract or 
contracts satisfactory and advantageous to the County can be negotiated, the awards shall be made 
to that firm or firms. Otherwise, negotiations with the firm or firms ranked first shall be formally 
terminated and negotiations conducted with the offerors ranked second, and so on until such a 
contract can be negotiated.  
 
Should the County determine in writing and in its sole discretion that only one or two firms are 
fully qualified, or that one or two firms are clearly more highly qualified than the others under 
consideration, a contract or contracts may be negotiated and awarded to that firm. Firms not 
selected shall be notified in writing. 
 
The County may cancel this Request for Qualifications or reject all submissions at any time prior 
to an award. 
 
Contact Information:  
 
Questions should be submitted in writing to the Lonzo Lester, County Administrator, by email to 
lonzo.lester@russellcountyva.us. 

    

 

  

mailto:lonzo.lester@russellcountyva.us


5 
 

 

GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 
1. Proposals shall be submitted at the place and time specified in the RFQ advertisement. Submit 
the proposal in a sealed envelope. Identify the envelope with project name “Three Rivers 
Destination Center Brownfields Assessment Project” and the name and address of Offeror. No 
responsibility will be attached to any Officer or Agent for the premature opening of a proposal not 
properly addressed and identified.  
 
2. It is the responsibility of the Offeror to assure that the proposal is delivered to the place 
designated for receipt of proposals prior to the closing time set for receipt of proposal. No proposal 
received after the time designated shall be considered. The Officer or Agent, whose duty it is to 
accept the proposals, will decide when the specified time has arrived.  
 
3. If any respective Offeror has questions about the specifications or other solicitation documents, 
the prospective Offeror should contact the department which is named on the face of the 
solicitation no later than five (5) working days before the due date. Any revisions to the solicitation 
will be made only by addendum issued by the County.  
 
4. Offerors are advised that oral explanations or instructions given by County Personnel during the 
Request for Proposals process, or at any time prior to the award shall be nonbinding.  
 
5. Persons intending to submit a proposal are specifically cautioned that the Offeror is barred from 
pleading misunderstanding or deception because of estimates of quantities, character, location or 
other conditions surrounding the same.  
 
6. Modifications, additions or changes to the Terms and Conditions of this Request by the 
Offeror may be cause for rejection.  
 
7. Any proposal in response to this solicitation shall be valid for 90 days. At the end of the 90 days 
the proposal may be withdrawn at the written request of the Offeror. If the proposal is not 
withdrawn at that time, it remains in effect until an award is made or the solicitation is cancelled.  
 
8. Payment for completed approved service will be made within thirty (30) days upon receipt of 
the invoice. The County of Russell has the right to verify information contained on any invoice 
and extend the time of payment until information is received to correct any errors found therein.  
 
9. Unless otherwise provided in this solicitation, the name of a certain brand, make or manufacturer 
does not restrict Offerors to the specific brand, make or manufacturer named, but conveys the 
general style, type, character, and quality of the article desired.  
 
10. Failure to furnish adequate data for evaluation purposes may result in declaring a proposal 
nonresponsive. Unless the Offeror clearly indicates the product offered is an equal product, such 
proposal will be considered to offer the brand name product referenced in the solicitation.  
 
11. In the case of default by the successful Offeror or failure to deliver goods ordered by the time 
specified, the County, after due written notice, may procure them from other sources and hold 
Offeror responsible for any resulting additional purchase and administrative costs.  



6 
 

 
12. By submitting their proposals, Offerors certify that their proposals are made without collusion 
or fraud and that they have not offered or received any kickbacks or inducements from any other 
Offeror, supplier, manufacturer or subcontractor in connection with their proposal, and that they 
have not conferred on any public employee having official responsibility for this procurement 
transaction any payment, loan, subscription, advance, deposit of money, services or anything of 
more than nominal value, present or promised unless consideration of substantially equal or greater 
value was exchanged.  
 
13. By submitting their proposal, Offerors certify to the County that they will conform to the 
provisions of the Federal Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended, as well as the Virginia Fair 
Employment Contracting Act of 1975, as amended, where applicable, the Virginians with 
Disabilities Act, The Americans with Disabilities Act and §2.2-4311 of the Virginia Public 
Procurement Act.  
 
14. By submitting their bid, the bidder certifies that they do not and will not during the performance 
of this contract employ illegal alien workers or otherwise violate the provisions of the federal 
Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986.  
 
15. During the performance of this contract, the contractor agrees as follows: (This section shall 
apply to all contracts over $10,000)  
 

a. The contractor will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for 
employment because of race, religion, color, sex, or national origin, or disabilities, 
except where religion, sex or national origin is a bona fide occupational qualification 
reasonably necessary to the normal operation of the contractor. The contractor agrees 
to post in conspicuous places, available to employees and applicants for employment, 
notices setting forth the provisions of this nondiscrimination clause.  

b. The contractor, in all solicitations or advertisements for employees placed by or on 
behalf of the contractor, will state that such contractor is an equal opportunity 
employer.  

c. Notices, advertisements and solicitations placed in accordance with federal law, rule 
or regulation shall be deemed sufficient for the purpose of these requirements.  
 

16. The contractor shall include the above provisions in every subcontract or purchase order over 
$10,000, so that the provisions will be binding upon each subcontractor or vendor.  
 
17. By submitting their proposal, the Offeror certifies that they do not and will not during the 
performance of this contract employ illegal alien workers or otherwise violate the provisions of 
the federal Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986.  
 
18. During the performance of this contract, the contractor agrees to (i) provide a drug-free 
workplace for the contractor's employees; (ii) post in conspicuous places, available to employees 
and applicants for employment, a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, 
sale, distribution, dispensation, possession, or use of a controlled substance or marijuana is 
prohibited in the contractor's workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against 
employees for violations of such prohibition; {iii) state in all solicitations or advertisements for 
employees placed by or on behalf of the contractor that the contractor maintains a drug-free 



7 
 

workplace; and (iv) include the provisions of the foregoing clauses in every subcontract or 
purchase order of over $10,000, so that the provisions will be binding upon each subcontractor or 
vendor.  
 
19. By submitting their proposals, Offerors certify that they are not currently debarred by the 
Commonwealth of Virginia from submitting proposals on contracts for the type of goods covered 
by the solicitation, nor are they an agent of any person or entity that is currently debarred.  
 
20. The County may make such reasonable investigations as deemed proper and necessary to 
determine the ability of the Offeror to perform the services and the Offeror shall furnish to the 
County all such information and data for this purpose as may be requested. The County reserves 
the right to inspect Offeror's physical facilities prior to award to satisfy questions regarding the 
Offeror's capabilities. The County further reserves the right to reject any proposal if the evidence 
submitted by, or investigations of, the Offeror fails to satisfy the County that such bidder is 
properly qualified to carry out the obligations of the contract.  
 
21. Upon award of a contract, it shall not be assignable by the contractor in whole or in part without 
the written consent of the County.  
 
22. Changes to the contract can be made in any of the following ways:  
 

a. The parties may agree in writing to modify the scope of the contract. An increase or 
decrease in the price of the contract resulting from such modification shall be agreed to 
by the parties as a part of their written agreement to modify the scope of the contract. 

  
b. The County may order changes within the general scope of the contract at any time by 
written notice to the contractor. Changes within the scope of the contract include, but are 
not limited to, things such as services to be performed, the method of packing of 
shipment, and the place of delivery or installation. The contractor shall comply with the 
notice upon receipt. The contractor shall be compensated for any additional costs 
incurred as the result of such order and shall give the County a credit for any savings. 
Compensation shall be determined by one of the following methods:  

 
1. By mutual agreement between the parties in writing; or  
2. By agreeing upon a unit price or using a unit price set forth in the contract; or  
3. By ordering the contractor to proceed with the work and keep a record of all 
costs incurred and savings realized. A markup for overhead and profit may be 
allowed if provided by the contract. The same markup shall be used for 
determining a decrease in price as the result of savings realized. The contractor 
shall present the County with all vouchers and records of expenses incurred and 
savings realized.  
 

23. The County reserves the right to reject any or all proposals, in whole or in part, to make separate 
awards, to waive informalities and to delete items prior to making the award, whenever it is deemed 
in the sole opinion of the County to be in its best interest. Due consideration will be given to price, 
previous experience and the ability of the Offeror to render required services.  
 



8 
 

24. The County shall not discriminate against any bidder, Offeror, or contractor in the solicitation 
or award of this contract because of race, religion, color, sex, national origin, age, disability, faith-
based organizational status, any other basis prohibited by state law relating to discrimination in 
employment, or because the bidder or Offeror employs ex-offenders unless the County has made 
a written determination that employing ex-offenders on the specific contract is not in its best 
interest.  
 
25. Cancellation of Contract -The County reserves the right to cancel any resulting contract, in part 
or in whole, without penalty, upon 30 days written notice to the Offeror. Any contract cancellation 
notice shall not relieve the Offeror of the obligation to deliver and/or perform on all outstanding 
orders prior to the date of cancellation.  
 
26. Availability of Funds -It is understood and agreed between the parties that the County shall be 
bound only to the extent of the funds available, or which may become available for the purpose of 
this agreement.  
 
27.  Insurance Requirements:  
 
a) Indemnification - The Offeror agrees, to the fullest extent of the law, to indemnify and hold the 
County harmless from and against all losses, damages, injuries, claims and demands whatsoever, 
regardless of the case thereof, and expenses in connection therewith, including reasonable counsel 
fees arising out of or incidental to the performance of the Offeror’s duties and responsibilities 
under any agreement that results from this request for proposals. This covenant of indemnity shall 
continue notwithstanding any revocation or termination of any agreement that results from this 
request for proposals. The Offeror shall be given prompt notice of any claims, demands or causes 
of action, and reasonable opportunity to defend the same.  
 
b) Insurance - The Offeror shall secure and keep in force, at its sole cost and expense, the following 
insurance policies which shall be in form and content satisfactory to the County and shall be issued 
by insurance companies qualified to do business in the Commonwealth of Virginia.  
 
Property Damage and Liability Insurance - Policy of property damage and public liability 
insurance which shall protect the County and such other persons as the County shall designate 
against any liability imposed by law upon the County, the Offeror, or both. Coverage shall include 
damages for loss of or damages to property, or for bodily injuries, including death suffered or 
claimed by reason or in consequence of any act or omission of any act by an employee or agent of 
the Offeror. Such insurance shall be on a comprehensive General Liability form with limits of 
$1,000,000 each occurrence, $1,000,000 aggregate and bodily injury liability to include: premises 
operations products, complete operations, contractual and broad form property damage.  
 
Worker’s Compensation and Other Insurance - The Offeror shall carry such Worker’s 
Compensation Insurance and other insurance on its employees and agent performing services 
under this contract, as is required by the Code of Virginia.  
 
c) Upon award, the Offeror shall provide the County with a certificate of insurance. Policy 
coverage shall be maintained during the entire term of the contract.  



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

July 30, 2021 
 
 
Lonzo Lester 
Russell County County Administrator 
137 Highland Drive 
Lebanon,Virginia 24266 
 
RE: Russell County Victim/ Witness Assistance Program 
 

Dear Lonzo Lester: 
 

Congratulations on being a recipient of the above referenced grant program! Your DCJS grant 
award number is 22-O1108VW19 and was approved for a total award of $70,000, funded through 
Award Numbers 2019-V2-GX-0054 and 2020-V2-GX-0048. The project period is 7/1/2021 through 
6/30/2022. 

 
Included with this letter is a Statement of Grant Award/Acceptance (SOGA). Please note hard 

copies of the General Special Conditions, as well as the Reporting Requirements and Projected Due 
Dates, are now referred to as Conditions and Requirements and will be posted online at 
https://www.dcjs.virginia.gov/grants/grant-requirements within the next two weeks.       

 
In addition to the general Special Conditions, there may be grant specific Special Conditions 

related to your Grant Award called Encumbrances. If there are any, you are required to adhere to these 
conditions via the On-line Grants Management System (OGMS) at https://ogms.dcjs.virginia.gov/. If 
you have not previously done so, you must register in order to use this web-based system. The 
instructions on Registering for a New Account and Submitting Action Item Encumbrances are posted 
here https://www.dcjs.virginia.gov/grants/ogms-training-resources along with other resources. 

 
We will be happy to assist you in any way we can to assure your project’s success. To indicate 

your acceptance of the award and conditions, please sign the included SOGA and return it 
electronically within the next 60 days to grantsmgmt@dcjs.virginia.gov. If you have questions, 
contact your DCJS Grant Monitor Patricia Foster at 804-371-8634 or via email at 
Patricia.Foster@dcjs.virginia.gov.  

 
Sincerely, 

 
 
      Shannon Dion 

https://www.dcjs.virginia.gov/grants/grant-requirements
https://ogms.dcjs.virginia.gov/
https://www.dcjs.virginia.gov/grants/ogms-training-resources


STATEMENT OF GRANT AWARD (SOGA) 
 

Virginia Department of Criminal Justice Services 
1100 Bank Street, 12th Floor 
Richmond, Virginia 23219 

Project Director Project Administrator Finance Officer 
 
Casie Hess 
Victim Witness Director 
53 E. Main Street 
Lebanon, Virginia 24266 
276-889-8225 
casie@russellcountyca.com 

 
Lonzo Lester 
Russell County County Administrator 
137 Highland Drive 
Lebanon, Virginia 24266 
276-889-8000 
lonzo.lester@russellcountyva.us 

 
Alicia McGlothlin 
Russell County Treasurer 
137 Highland Drive 
Lebanon, Virginia 24266 
276-889-8028 
alicia.mcglothlin@bvu.net 

 
*Please indicate your ICR in the space provided, if applicable. As the duly authorized 
representative, the undersigned, having received the Statement of Grant Awards (SOGA) and 
reviewing the Special Conditions, hereby accepts this grant and agree to the conditions and 
provisions of all other Federal and State laws and rules and regulations that apply to this award.  

      
Signature:  ______________________________  

        Authorized Official (Project Administrator) 
      

Title:   ______________________________ 
 
 
Date:   ______________________________ 

Russell County Victim/ Witness Assistance Program 

Subgrantee: Russell     
DUNS Number: 40157851  DCJS Grant Number: 22-O1108VW19 
Grant Start Date: 7/1/2021  Grant End Date: 6/30/2022 
 
Indirect Cost Rate: %  *If applicable 

 

Federal Funds:   $49,000   
State General Funds:    
State Special Funds:  $21,000 
 
Total Budget:   $70,000 
 

Federal Grant Number:  2019-V2-GX-0054 and 2020-V2-GX-0048 
Federal Awardee:  OVC 
Federal Catalog Number:  16.575 
Project Description: To provide direct services for crime victims. 
Federal Start Date:   10/1/2018 
 
 
























































































































	Presentations.pdf
	Meeting: 9/7/21      6:00 PM
	Staff Recommendation:
	Suggested Motion:

	Public Hearing.pdf
	Meeting: 9/7/21     6:00 PM
	Staff Recommendation:
	Suggested Motion:

	Authorization - Minutes BOS.pdf
	SUGGESTED MOTION(s):

	Authorization - Expenditures.pdf
	SUGGESTED MOTION(s):

	Authorization - Expenditures.pdf
	SUGGESTED MOTION(s):

	Presentations - Attorney.pdf
	Meeting: 9/7/21         6:00 PM
	Staff Recommendation:
	Suggested Motion:

	InterjurisdictionalAgreement.pdf
	W I T N E S S E T H :
	(13) This Agreement may only be modified by a writing approved by the Counties’ respective governing bodies, by vote at a public meeting, evidenced by a certified copy of a written resolution of each County's governing body.
	(14) The Counties may not withdraw from this Agreement unless the other Participants unanimously agree, by vote of their respective governing bodies at a public meeting.
	COUNTY OF RUSSELL, VIRGINIA
	ATTEST:
	COUNTY OF TAZEWELL, VIRGINIA
	ATTEST:

	Reports1.pdf
	Meeting: 9/7/21             6:00 PM
	STAFF RECOMMENDATION(s):

	B13159B-01_DRAFT SET.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Cover

	Sheets and Views
	1 - Site Plan

	Sheets and Views
	2 - Piping Schematic

	Sheets and Views
	3 - Details


	Rambler Stave AFID Performance Agreement.pdf
	GOVERNOR’S AGRICULTURE & FORESTRY INDUSTRIES DEVELOPMENT FUND
	PERFORMANCE AGREEMENT
	The Locality has elected to enter into a building lease-purchase agreement with the Company in the amount of $1,500,000 which lease period will end ______, 2031.

	By
	By
	By

	Russell County Award-Accep.pdf
	Supreme Court of Virginia 
	F.  Supplies & Other Expenses


	Russell County special conditions.pdf
	STATEMENT OF GRANT AWARD SPECIAL CONDITIONS
	Title:   Russell County Adult Drug Court

	Date:  August 3, 2021




